1

1

2
3
4

5

6
7

8
9

10

MIN UTE S

11

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE

12

Council of the County of Maui

13

Council Chamber

14

March 16, 2005

15

16
17
18
19

20
21
22
23

24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

WR 3/16/05

2

1

CONVENE:

9:07 a.m.

2

PRESENT:

Councilmember
Councilmember
Councilmember
(left at
Councilmember
(arr. at
Councilmember
(left at
Councilmember

3
4

5

6

Michelle Anderson, Chair
Charmaine Tavares, Vice-Chair
Robert Carroll, Member
10:43 a.m.)
Jo Anne Johnson, Member
9: 28 a. m. )
Dain P. Kane, Member
11:37 a.m.)
Joseph Pontanilla, Member

Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Non-member
(arr. at 9: 20 a. m. )

7

8

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Michael J. Molina, Member

STAFF:

David Raatz, Legislative Attorney
Scott Jensen, Legislative Analyst
Tamara Koller, Legislative Analyst
Pauline Martins, Committee Secretary

9

10
11

12

Jock Yamaguchi, Executive Assistant to
Councilmember Kane

13
ADMIN. :

Edward Kushi, Jr., Deputy Corporation
Counsel, Department of the Corporation
Counsel
George Tengan, Director,
Department of Water Supply
Jeffrey Pearson, Deputy Director,
Department of Water Supply
Paul Seitz, Chief, Water Treatment Plant
Operations Division, Department of Water
Supply
Holly Perdido, Waterworks Fiscal Officer,
Fiscal Division, Department of Water
Supply
Helene Kau, Assistant Fiscal Officer,
Fiscal Division, Department of Water
Supply
Sheri Morrison, Budget Director,
Office of the Mayor
Kenneth Yamamura, Economic Development
Specialist, Office of Economic
Development, Office of the Mayor

OTHERS:

Ann Hajnosz, Project Manager, R.W. Beck, Inc.
Mike Quinn, Water Rates Stakeholder Committee

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

WR 3/16/05

3

Elliot Krash, Water Rates Stakeholder
Committee
Ralph Johansen, Member, Board of Water Supply
Warren Watanabe
Buzz Stluka, Haleakala Ranch
Plus (4) other people

1

2
3
4

PRESS:
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5

6

CHAIR ANDERSON:

(Gavel).

The Water Resources Committee

7

of the Council of the County of Maui will come to

8

order for our March 20 --

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16th, Chair.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR ANDERSON:

12

WR-24

13

CHAIR ANDERSON:

16.

- 16th meeting.

WATER RATE STUDY (C.C. No. 05-43)

We're going to be discussing our Water

14

Rate Study.

15

presentation from Ann Hajnosz, who's the consultant

16

with R.W. Beck, who's come from Washington to be

17

with us today.

18

We have a panel discussion, and also a

We have with us Member Robert Carroll, Member

19

Dain Kane, Member Charmaine Tavares, Member Joseph

20

Pontanilla.

Member Jo Anne Johnson will be joining

21

us shortly.

From Staff we have Corp. Counsel Ed

22

Kushi, Water Director George Tengan, Water Staff

23

Holly Perdido, Consultant Ann Hajnosz, Water Rate

24

Stakeholder Committee Member Elliott Krash, Board of

25

Water Supply Member Ralph Johansen, and Water Rate
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1

Stakeholder Mike Quinn.

Council Staff, we have

2

Pauline Martins and David Raatz.

3

being here today.

Thank you all for

Before we take public testimony, I thought we

4
5

would have Ms. Hajnosz give us her presentation.

6

It's about ten minutes
(Inaudible) .

7

MS. HAJNOSZ:

8

CHAIR ANDERSON:

9

MS. HAJNOSZ:

10

Excuse me?

It's longer?

How long is it?

An hour.

CHAIR ANDERSON:

An hour?

I was told it was ten minutes.

11

We want to have time for questions and the members

12

have a meeting in Hana this evening, so we're going

13

to try to keep the meeting very -- not necessarily

14

short, but very succinct and to the point so members

15

have a chance to ask questions.

16

way you can kind of shortcut your presentation, we'd

17

appreciate that.

18

MS. HAJNOSZ:

19

CHAIR ANDERSON:

So if there's any

How long do we have?
Well, I know it's going to be impossible

20

for you to take an hour presentation and just cut it

21

down, so maybe just be quick.

22

MS. HAJNOSZ:

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24

CHAIR ANDERSON:

25

All right, just the highlights.
Give the highlights.

So we're going to take a short recess in

order for people to move back for the screen and
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1

then we'll reconvene and have our presentation.

2

meeting is in recess.
RECESS:

4

RECONVENE:

5

CHAIR ANDERSON:

9
10

9:13 a.m.

(Gavel).

Water Resource Committee is now

back in session.
Ms. Ann Hajnosz is now going to give us her

7

8

(Gavel) .

9:10 a.m.

3

6

The

presentation.
MS. HAJNOSZ:

Thank you, Ann.

Thank you, Chair Anderson, and good morning

to all of you here.

11

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Is this on?

Yes.

Okay, good.

As you all know, I think you've

13

all been privy to some of the information that has

14

gone back and forth in terms of the correspondence

15

and reports from the Water Resources -- for the

16

Water Rate Stakeholders Committee.

17

to just give you some highlights about some of the

18

key assumptions that were used in developing the

19

rate increase.

20

slides and talk about some of the key assumptions

21

that were used in putting together the rate

22

recommendation.

Today I'm going

So we're going to skip through these

First of all, I want to make it clear that

23
24

the rate recommendation is for Fiscal Year 2006

25

only.

In spite of the fact that we do have
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1

projections out for 2005 to 2010, that's really just

2

for informational purposes so that, you know, a lot

3

of times when people -- when we look at rate

4

increases, people will say, okay, we're going to

5

have a rate increase now, but what happens in the

6

coming years?

7

that we're taking into account not only one year,

8

but multiple years.

9

And so we want to let people know

We looked at the service growth in -

for the

10

last three years, and are projecting services to

11

grow at approximately 2 percent per year.

12

on the relatively low side of the projections.

13

know that there's been a tremendous amount of growth

14

in Maui County.

15

we like to build in some degree of conservatism,

16

because if we project too high and the revenues

17

don't come in, then that's not a good story.

That was
We

But when we do these projections,

18

The water sales projections are projected to

19

go about 1.5 percent per year, which is pretty much

20

close to what historical numbers are showing us so

21

that we feel comfortable with that number,

22

especially since we're kind of tempering our

23

projection for number of services.

24

expenses are projected to increase at about 4.4

25

percent, and again, we looked at historical

Operating
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1

operating expense movement, see how that compared,

2

and that seemed reasonable to project at 4.4.

3

Probably one of the biggest issues with this

4

rate study has been the level of capital

5

expenditures.

6

critical issue for the Stakeholders Committee when

7

it was determined that when we looked again at

8

historical capital expenditure levels, those levels

9

were much lower than budgeted levels.

And this became a very kind of

It became a

10

concern for a couple reasons, not only because of

11

course they were building -- the Department was

12

building up some pretty high reserves as a result of

13

not spending their capital improvement project, but

14

from the stakeholders' standpoint, from the users'

15

standpoint it became an issue because there was a

16

great desire out there for the Department to really

17

accelerate capital improvement spending, to get

18

those renewals and replacements done to help plan

19

for growth and accommodate growth, and so those were

20

the two issues that we really talked about quite a

21

bit to try to come up with a reasonable level of CIP

22

expenditures.

23

So we did look at a historical expenditures.

24

We looked at the capacity of -- on a more -- I guess

25

an overview, we looked at the capacity of the
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1

Department to do CIP, and then the stakeholders were

2

very adamant at saying, look, we just can't be

3

business as it is anymore.

4

capital spending.

5

that's how the $25 million per year number was

6

arrived at.

We need to increase

How are we going to do this?

And

7

In addition to the capital -- to the level of

8

the CIP expenditures, a very critical assumption was

9

how the capital expenditures were going to be

10

financed, and so we looked at things like Safe

11

Drinking Water Loans, Water System Development Fee

12

revenues, rate revenues, which are essentially out

13

of the Capital Reserve Fund, we looked at general

14

obligation bonds, and then out in the future there's

15

a possibility of getting some State support for some

16

of these capital projects.

17

These are the assumptions that we use that we

18

build in in funding the capital program, and they're

19

very -- you know, they're subject to whatever the

20

now that the County's going to let the Department

21

do.

22

a recommendation for about $2 million worth of bonds

23

to be sold for the capital improvement program.

24

that the budget process has been completed, we know

25

that those bonds are now not going to be available

For example, in the rate recommendation we had
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1

for Fiscal Year '06

2

Department has had to revise its projections.

3

it's a verYr you know r critical thing for not only

4

the Department but for the County to kind of get a

5

handle on where are we going with capital

6

expenditures in terms of the level r but also to get

7

a handle on how we're going to fund these capital

B

improvement programs going forward.

9

r

so we have to revise -- the
So

Another key assumption was debt service

10

coverage target r and what that is is essentially the

11

level of assurance r a level of assurance that you

12

can give your creditors that you're going to be able

13

to pay for your debt service obligations.

14

for example r the Department has a debt service

15

obligation of about $6 million a year.

16

a debt service coverage of 1.25 times that $6

17

million to come up with something like $B million.

IB

That's the amount of income that you have to have

19

after you subtract out your expenses r okay.

20

Revenues r less your operating expenses r needs to

21

come up with something like $B million to cover your

22

$6 million in debt service expense r okay.

23

And SOr

We targeted

Credit rating agencies look at that debt

24

service coverage target.

It's a very important

25

indicator of the stability of the utility.
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1

cases that number is higher, but we are using 1.25

2

based on a debt service policy study that the

3

Department had undertaken a few years back.

4

The final key assumption is an Operating Fund

5

ending balance target.

In many utilities what we do

6

is look at a fund that approximates 30 to 45 days of

7

o and M expenditures.

8

utility sort of a cushion,

9

emergency fund balance, and this is to cover leads

And this essential gives the
some people call it an

10

and lags in accounts receivables and payables.

11

can cover emergency expenditures, things like that.

12

So typically what we are doing and what the other

13

utilities are doing are looking at a 30 to 45 up to

14

60 days of 0 and M's in their operating

15

their Operating Fund, okay.

16

It

this is

And in the past the Department has kept

17

balances that have been pretty high, but now since

18

they have been absorbed under the County, we

19

understand that those balances need to be coming

20

down and so we've got it down to probably less than

21

ten days of 0 and M expenditures on an annual basis,

22

okay.

23

Now, as far as the Fiscal Year '06 projection

24

of funds goes, this is just sort of a break out of

25

how the revenues would be coming in, but of course
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the largest part is your water sales revenues at

2

$28.4 million.

3

generate $3.4 million, and then you'd have other

4

income of $1.8 million, okay, for a total of -- your

5

total sources would be 33.6.

6

The rate increase of 12 percent will

Next slide will show you how those

how

7

those sources would be applied.

The bulk of it,

8

again, would be 0 and M expenditures, $25.5 million.

9

You see your debt service there of 6.1.

Your

10

capital expenditures, okay, I want to make sure

11

everyone's sort of clear on this, the 2 -- a $2

12

million in capital expenditure right there

13

represents a transfer from the Operating Fund to the

14

Capital Reserve Fund, okay.

15

money that we're going to take from the Operating

16

Fund that's generated through the sale of water, and

17

it's going to be transferred to a Capital Fund to

18

help fund the $25 million program, okay.

19

So that's the amount of

Because as I mentioned before, the $25

20

million is going to be funded through a series of

21

rate revenue, which is essentially Capital Reserve

22

Fund, we had projected bonds, we had projected

23

actually General Fund reserves, which we'll talk

24

about later.

25

portion of how we're going to fund the capital

Okay, so that just represents a
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2

12

program! okay.
Okay! this addresses some of the questions

3

that came up for the basis of the CIP.

And I know

4

I've talked about some of this before.

I'm not

5

going to read all of this! but essentially the

6

Stakeholder Committee in working with the Department

7

and getting input from -- you know! it was not only

8

the stakeholders.

9

We were in contact with the Board.

We had a Board member on there.
We also had

10

Mayor! staff! and some of the Council assistance in

11

the audience.

12

They knew that we were really focusing in on the CIP

13

and how we could get the Department the resources to

14

take on a higher level of CIP! okay.

15

So everyone was pretty much there.

We recognize that it is a significantly

16

higher level of expenditures than the Department has

17

had in the past! but the stakeholders felt that it

18

was necessary to kind of set a higher target! you

19

know! set a higher bar in order to move this issue

20

forward.

21

to be addressed.

22

million with the current staff operating as is.

23

there either needs to be an increase in staffing or

24

there needs to be a change in the way things are

25

done! and the stakeholders absolutely recognize

We know that staffing issues at DWS need
There's no way they can do $25
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13

this.

2

We had a meeting where the Director of

3

Personnel Services came and told us how their

4

recruiting efforts were -

5

recruited -- tried to recruit more engineers, and

6

we're going to get an update from them -- from the

7

Department of Personnel Services at our next meeting

8

next week.

9

for is definitely not business as usual.

explained to us how they

So we recognize that what we're asking
We're

10

asking for a change in the way things are done in

11

order to accomplish a higher level of CIP, okay.

12

All right.

For the Fiscal Year 2006

13

projection of $25.8 million, this is how the CIP was

14

broken out.

15

of that was for source, to address the source of

16

supply issues that the -- everyone in the County is

17

pretty much aware of, I think.

18

behind these, and so the way that the Department put

19

this together is basically they have a priority

20

prioritized list of CIP, they have it based on a

21

different number of I guess categories.

22

And as you can see, the biggest piece

We have the projects

- a

The ones that we are most interested in is

23

how they're going to solve certain things

24

issues like source and supply, there are some

25

drought-related projects, there are some significant

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

- certain

WR 3/16/05

14

1

renewal and replacement projects involving replacing

2

lines to get them up to speed for fire protection

3

issues, a tremendous amount of fire protection

4

capital is going in.

5

things that we look at.

6

balance it with, number one, how much can the

7

Department do and then how much needs to get done.

8

And then of course are the projects that are going

9

to be completed being done in such a way to meet the

10
11

So those are all the kinds of
And again, we have to

most critical needs of the County.

Okay.

This is a slide that tells you how we're

12

going -- how we had proposed to fund the CIP.

13

Again, right here the Capital Reserve Fund, $5.8

14

million includes the 2

15

pie that we saw from the sources of funds -- I'm

16

sorry from the use of the funds pie chart.

17

$5.8 million, if the 12 percent rate increase were

18

not approved, that number would be 3.8.

19

be our projection.

20

Fund would not be impacted by the rate increase,

21

because that fund basically collects revenues from

22

the Water System Development Fee, and there is no

23

change in that -- in that fee.

24
25

- that $2 million piece of

That

That would

The Water System Development Fee

We had projected $2 million of general
obligation bonds, but as I mentioned earlier that
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1

that option is no longer available.

2

piece right there, the General Fund reserves, let me

3

explain this.

4

this idea of how big the CIP should be relative to

5

the Department's capacity to do it, but also with

6

the Department and the County's ability to fund

7

these things.

8

9

The largest

As I mentioned, we struggled with

We recognize that 25.8 is a significant
number, and so we -- in talking to several people in

10

the County, they gave us this idea that what we

11

could -- what the Department is able to do is to

12

rely on the General Fund reserves to put up the

13

money ahead of time to fund capital projects if the

14

Department, you know, spends its reserves, its own

15

reserves.

16

could balance the stakeholders' desire to target a

17

higher level of CIP but not have -- to put the

18

burden on the rate payer to fund all that money and

19

then not have the Department spend it, you know.

20

Because we recognize that there is a significant

21

issue with having large fund balances, and we didn't

22

want to put that burden on the rate payer.

23

And so this was a way that we felt we

So this was a way that we thought we could

24

say, look, we want you to target 25.8, but we also

25

realize that you -- until you get up to speed, until
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1

you reorganize your Department or get more staff,

2

you're not going to be able to do it at that level,

3

but we need to keep that target in our focus.

4

Okay.

This is a history of the Capital Reserve Fund

5

balance, and as I mentioned earlier, it's been

6

pretty significant because the Department has not

7

been spending capital at the levels that they had

8

been anticipated to spend it.

9

we're still, you know, close to 13 million.

At the end of 2004
At the

10

end of 2005, we're projecting that to go down to

11

half of that amount, and then if the Department

12

spends its capital budget for '05 and '06, this

13

is -- these are end of year balances, the amount in

14

the Capital Reserve Fund will go to almost nothing

15

based on that level of spending.

16

Again, there are a lot of ifs in there, but

17

from the stakeholders' standpoint, it was just

18

critical that we brought this issue out to the

19

forefront to say we need to increase our capital

20

spending, and not only for Fiscal Year '06.

21

this is a mUlti-year projection.

22

projects out there in 2009 and 2010.

23

going to get the funds necessary to pay for the big

24

Piiholo Reservoir replacement, for example.

25

know, those are the kinds of things we need to start

There are some big
How are we
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17

thinking about now.

Okay.

This was one of the questions that came out

2
3

of some of the correspondence.

4

recommendation for the level of the CIP?

5

currently believes it can do 20 million under its

6

current staffing conditions.

7

What is the consultant's recommendation?

8

on a rate study we do not say this is how much we

9

think you should do.

10

look at what they've

11

a historical basis.

12

very high level what their needs are to kind of make

13

sure that we're not just doing the spiky kind of

14

thing, you know, to just make sure that there's some

15

reasonable assumptions plugged into why we're

16

doing

17

that's different from historical levels.

18

feel that we've done this.

19

What is DWS's
DWS

Okay, next question:
Typically

What we do do is go back and
what our utility has done on
We look at, you know, from a

- why we're using capital improvement level

We've looked at

And we

- in some of the

20

correspondence you may have seen, we looked at

21

varying levels of CIP expenditures, what that would

22

do to a rate increase, okay.

23

analyses, and we have different assumptions in

24

there, so it's a little complicated to compare it to

25

what it is today.

And these are older

But I will tell you that the
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1

consultant typically does not recommend a CIP level

2

unless the consultant has had a hand in actually

3

putting that CIP together, and we have done that in

4

other projects.

5

it on the Big Island, but we did not do it -- it was

6

not part of our scope for this particular study.

7

Okay.

8

Okay.

9

million CIP?

We've done in on Kauai, we're doing

What increase is needed for $15
And as I mentioned earlier, we did

10

look at different levels of CIP expenditures,

11

probably this is back in July and August, when our

12

assumptions and the key assumption that was

13

different then was that instead of transferring $2

14

million to the Capital Reserve Fund, back then we

15

were transferring $4 million.

16

recommendation was significantly higher than the

17

historical level, but it was based on a study that

18

the Department had done -- or had prepared from

19

another consultant that looked at renewal and

20

replacement needs for the Department on an annual

21

basis, and that was really the low level, the lower

22

range, of what the Department should be transferring

23

to its Capital Reserve Fund on an annual basis.

24

think it went from 4 to like 8 million dollars a

25

year.

And that $4 million

Historically the Department has been doing
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about 2.
So after we looked at that -- those scenarios

2
3

under a transfer of about 4 million, we knew that

4

there just wasn't -- you know, a rate increase would

5

be very significant, having $4 million transferred

6

from the Operating Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund,

7

so we had to taper that down back to $2 million.

8

a result, the actual level of the CIP is not going

9

to -- is not going to affect the rate increase quite

10

as much, okay, because you've got other sources of

11

funds.

12

bonds, you have the Water System Development Fee.

13

Okay.

14

As

You have Safe Drinking Water Loans, you have

So the rate increase is really tied to,

15

number one, we have to pay for all 0 and M and debt

16

service.

17

the Department self sufficient, has to be paid for.

18

And then how much more do you want the rates to

19

generate to pay for CIP?

20

calculated is that there's a minimum of a 5 percent

21

rate increase needed.

22

million in additional revenue.

23

Department self sufficient to pay for 0 and M and

24

meet its debt service obligation.

25

you want to fund more from the Operating Fund to the

Okay, that's the minimum in order to keep

Okay.

And so what we've

That will generate about $1.4
That will keep the

If you want -- if
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1

CIP you're going to have to have a higher rate

2

increase.

3

percent.

4

for a total of $3.4 million, to add to the CIP

5

funding pot, okay.

And what we're recommending is 12
That gives you an additional $2 million,

Okay, these are just some policy issues.

6
7

can go through them pretty quickly.

8

discussed that the rates need to support a higher

9

level of CIP.

We

We've already

Let's go to the next slide.

Another

10

key policy issue that the stakeholders discussed was

11

the need for the rates to encourage conservation.

12

Let me be clear that the current rate structure is a

13

very conservation-oriented rate structure.

14

inverted block rate structure, which means that as

15

you use more water, you pay more -- you pay for it.

16

You pay a higher amount for it.

It's an

The agricultural rate is a declining block

17
18

rate.

It goes up, and then it goes down, declining

19

block.

20

usage all the time.

21

structure is a very conservation-oriented rate

22

structure, just by the nature of the inverted block.

23

Now, the way it could be more conservation-oriented

24

is if we can alter those blocks to be matched up

25

with the -- with the actual consumption of different

The non-potable rate is a uniform rate, same
But the general use rate
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1

customer groups, like single-family groups or larger

2

commercial, those kinds of things.

3

the recommendation of the stakeholders, to encourage

4

conservation let's design these rates to better fit

5

or better suit the class -- the classes that are

6

using the water, because right now, you know, the

7

highest block is at greater than 25,000 gallons over

8

two months.

9

a good part of medium users are in that third block,

And so that is

Well, all the large users and probably

10

right, so they're effectively on a uniform rate,

11

okay.

12

Okay, next.

The third policy issue was that

13

rates should continue to support ag, that there is a

14

very strong feeling that the ag community needed to

15

continue to get the support from the Department for

16

those lower rates.

17

block rate, and the stakeholders definitely wanted

18

to maintain that structure and they wanted to go a

19

step further and say if the whole system needs a 12

20

percent rate increase, we're going to give ag less

21

than that because we want -- you know, we want to

22

keep them competitive.

23

very well taken care of in terms of protecting their

24

ability to compete in the State.

25

Next one.

I mentioned this on a declining

And so ag interests were

This was another question that
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1

came up.

2

no increase for ag and non-potable customers?

3

Because ag is such is small part of the water usage

4

in the County, I think it's 8 percent of water

5

usage, 4 percent of revenues, the general use rate,

6

everybody's rates, would go up -

7

percent, it would go up 12.5 percent, a very, very

8

small increase.

9

had no increase.

10

What would happen if the -- if there was

instead of 12.2

This is if ag and non-potable rates

And while this may seem like a very appealing

11

scenario to some people, from a rate making

12

standpoint what we try to do is keep rates not only

13

equitable but fair.

14

mean that they are cost of service based as much as

15

possible.

16

these rates are based on cost of service, or at

17

least approaching cost of service.

18

all at once, and that's where the fairness issue

19

comes.

20

saying, okay, ag, you're 200 percent below cost of

21

service.

22

you up to cost of service, and that I don't believe

23

is a fair thing -- would not be a fair thing to do.

24
25

And when I say equitable, I

When we do our cost of service analysis,

You can't do it

You know, you -- the fairness issue is

So in one fell sweep we're going to bring

Conversely, I don't think this is a fair
scenario where you're asking everyone else to pay
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1

more and then not having ag and non-potable pay

2

anything, okay.

3

guidelines that R.W. Beck follows when we're

4

designing rates.

5

obviously, from the standpoint of the utility and

6

its governing bodies, but these are the kinds of

7

things we want to point out to people, because this

8

is general rate-making theory.

Those are -- those are sort of the

It's strictly a policy decision,

9

The last policy issue was that rates should

10

support low income and fixed income customers, and

11

again, this was a very big issue for the

12

stakeholders, that we recognize that a 12 percent

13

rate increase is not insignificant.

14

able to shield those low income or fixed income

15

customers as much as possible.

16

a -- you know, a strong push to maintain the current

17

rate structure lifeline first block, which is zero

18

to 10,000 over a bimonthly period translates to

19

5,000 gallons a month, which is really the minimum

20

sanitary usage for a family.

21

consistent with the stakeholders' desire to keep

22

that -

23

step further to say we're not going to increase the

24

first block rate.

25

And so there's an opportunity for people that are in

We wanted to be

And so there was

And so that's

the first block being and then also go a

We're going to keep it at $1.42.
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that block or towards -- have most of their usage in

2

that block to really not have to pay much more.

3

So the flip side of that, of course, is that

4

if you're going to give a break to, you know, people

5

at the lower usage levels, of course other people

6

have to pick up the difference, right?

7

result you've got increases of course in the second

8

and third block that would be higher than a

9

straight, you know, 12 percent across the board

10

increase.

11

at what would it be if we just gave a straight 12

12

percent rate increase to every customer.

13

from there we moved to, well, what about ag, how

14

would we take care of ag, okay, let's give them a

15

little bit less.

16

our fixed income, low income customers, okay, we're

17

going to -- we're going to give back a little and

18

have higher users pay a little bit more.

19

Because we did look at that.

And so as a

We looked

And then

Okay, how would we take care of

Okay, this -- the last board here, the

20

potential for low income utility bill assistance is

21

very -- it's much more common in the electric

22

industry, if anyone is familiar with that, but the

23

electric industry has a history and has more of a

24

tradition, I think, of providing some direct utility

25

assistance on their electric bills, or sometimes
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1

counties or cities will provide a total utility

2

credit.

3

or it won't only be targeted to water or solid

4

waste, or wastewater, it will be a combined utility

5

credit.

6

stakeholders thought, well, we can maybe look at --

7

look at it next time to see if maybe MECO has

8

something or if there are other ways that you could

9

administer a low income credit or low income

10

assistance program for the Water Department.

11

So it won't be targeted only to electricity

And so this is something that, again, the

So this is the -- sort of the rate

12

recommendation assembly.

13

system-wide rate increase that basically means rate

14

revenues will go up by 12 percent.

15

into a general use rate of 12.2 percent, ag rate

16

would increase about 7.2, non-potable goes up

17

slightly less, 6.2.

18

be split up as follows:

19

M and debt service.

20

level that we are saying needs to -- the Department

21

needs to be self sufficient.

22

additional 7 percent if we want to transfer $2

23

million to the Capital Reserve Fund.

24
25

We have a 12 percent

That translates

The 12 percent increase could
5 percent to pay for 0 and

Again, that is the minimum

7 percent -- an

This is a one-year rate recommendation for
Fiscal Year '06, even though the report and the
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1

stakeholder letter does have rate projections out to

2

2010, that's for informational purposes only.

3

utilities do adopt a five-year rate schedule, and

4

the Department has in the past done that, but now

5

under the County government we understand we can

6

only adopt a one-year rate schedule.

7

what we're recommending.

8

would be subject to the same process where you would

9

look at your 0 and M projections, capital

10

projections, and see what you might need.

And so that's

Future year rate increases

So why is this increase needed?

11

Some

Okay.

Essentially,

12

just sort of to wrap up, we need $33.6 million to

13

pay for 0 and M and capital

14

which include debt service and a transfer to the

15

Capital Reserve Fund.

16

nutshell.

17

this is a graph that shows the rate increases that

18

the Department has had.

19

July of 2001.

20

healthy rate increases going.

and capital expenses,

That's pretty much it in a

Just for historical perspective, we --

They have not had one since

Previous to that there's pretty

The proposed rates, I'm just going to quickly

21
22

go through these, this is the monthly service

23

charge.

24

Those are going up slightly more than the 12

25

percent, and when I talk about 12 percent, I'm

You see your existing versus your proposed.
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talking about 12 percent of their sales revenues

2

going up, okay.

3

across the board for each fee.

4

do is increase these fees and overall you get 3.4

5

million on your water sales revenues.

That doesn't mean a 12 percent
What we essentially

These levels, the proposed levels right here

6
7

are well below cost of service levels still, and

8

this is where we get to that equity and fairness

9

issue again.

It would be more equitable, it would

10

be closer to cost of service levels if the

11

five-eighth inch meter, the proposed number were

12

$14, because that's what cost of service says when

13

we do our analysis.

14

9 and 12, I believe, for a five-eighths inch meter,

15

but it wouldn't be fair to do that.

16

fair to go from 5.6 to $14, especially to the low

17

income and fixed income customers, right.

18

we've again tempered that increase, but we're seeing

19

a gradual increase hopefully to cost of service

20

levels.

The other counties are at like

It wouldn't be

And so

21

These are the proposed usage charges.

22

you can see for existing and proposed we're keeping

23

the first block the same and then the second and

24

third blocks again are going up a little higher.

25

And then ag and non-potable have their usage -
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1

their fees going up just slightly, about 7 or 6

2

percent.

3

impact analysis, where we just show in the far

4

right-hand column what a monthly bill increase would

5

look like.

6

number

7

Department of Water Supply are residential,

8

five eighth inch using about 30,000 gallons on a

9

bimonthly period, their bill would go up $7 every

Okay.

This will just be -- this is a bill

So, for example, taking the predominant

- the predominant customers in the

10

two months.

11

at less than $50 increase.

12

see the ag rates going up.

13

You know, over a year, you're looking
And then similarly, you

This is a comparison of the County of Maui

14

with the other counties, the other three counties.

15

We basically took County of Hawaii, City & County of

16

Honolulu, and County of Kauai, looked at their

17

current rates for water service and took a

18

three-county average.

19

under the proposed rates Maui County would be higher

20

than Honolulu but still lower than County of Hawaii

21

and County of Kauai at the residential rate level.

22

And then this is a just a comparison for wastewater

23

and Solid Waste, electric service, just can kind of

24

see where on a total utility basis the County of

25

Maui would stand.

I can tell you that Maui --

Okay.
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Okay, if we don't have a 12 percent rate

1

2

increase, we basically would not get our

3

projected

4

revenues that would be enough to cover 0 and M and

5

debt service.

6

and M.

7

Year '06.

8

the Capital Reserve Fund.

9

a minimum of 5 percent.

10

you know, the level of projected

We'd have to significantly reduce 0

Net income would likely be negative Fiscal
There would be no funds transferred to
And as I've said, we need
Okay.

So in -- just in summary, our rate

11

recommendation we believe fulfills three goals.

12

provides financial self-sufficiency to the

13

Department of Water Supply, and as an enterprise

14

fund that's sort of the minimum requirement.

15

got to have revenues cover your operating and

16

capital expenses.

17

funds for capital projects.

18

contributing about $2 million a year historically to

19

the Capital Reserve Fund.

20

that practice.

21

higher level of CIP expenditures.

22

It

You've

It provides a constant stream of
The Department has been

We would like to continue

And it also provides support for a

And finally, as I've sort of mentioned, there

23

is a recommendation for DWS to investigate going to

24

a customer class oriented rates so that we can

25

stratify that general use rate category right now to
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1

break it up into at least single family.

2

really what we're trying to target is the single

3

family customers t see if we can get more of a

4

conservation-oriented rate signal into that rate

5

structure.

6

CHAIR ANDERSON:

I think that's it.
Members

t

would you like to ask questions

7

before we raise the screen?

8

look at another slide?

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
CHAIR ANDERSON:

That's

Does anybody want to

We have hard copies.
that's great.

OkaYt

So let's take a

11

brief recess and we'll reconvene with our panel.

12

Thank you.

13

RECESS:

14

RECONVENE:

15

CHAIR ANDERSON:

16

(Gavel)

9: 48 a.m.
9: 50 a.m.

(Gavel)

The Water Resources Committee

meeting is back in order.
Before we take questions from the members

17

t

we

18

do have one testifier t Mr. Warren Watanabe t

19

like to come up and testify now.

20

public who's here is aware t we have a couple extra

21

copies down front of the PowerPoint presentation we

22

just had if you'd like to have a copy.
Thank you

23

24
25

t

if you'd

And just so the

Mr. Watanabe.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

MR. WATANABE:

Good morning

t

Chairperson Anderson and
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1

Members of the Committee.

2

Watanabe, President of the Maui County Farm Bureau.

3

The Maui County Farm Bureau supports the proposed

4

water rates.

5

to the cost of business.

6

object to the increase, but as an organization, we

7

are part of the community and must recognize that we

8

need to be part of the solution.

9

My name is Warren

We do recognize that any increase adds
Individual businesses may

We all want to improve the water system to

10

the highest of standards.

11

accomplished with adequate funding.

12

the questions that have been raised regarding the

13

impacts of the rate hikes on farmers with

14

conservation practices such as drip.

15

that these farmers will be the ones that will be

16

that will experience the highest percentage

17

increase.

18

identify irrigation practices, nor differentiate the

19

rural farmer from the illegitimate ag water users.

20

They will both tend to fall in the same category of

21

water volume use.

22

be -- there is a need for a separate program that

23

rewards conservation practices, and this can be

24

extended beyond farming to the rest of the users.

25

This can only be
We agree with

It is true

However, the current database does not

Hence, we suggest that there

There are examples of programs across the
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1

United States where users are accredited for

2

conservation practices after it is inspected and

3

approved by the Department.

4

support this rate increase, we do request that some

5

funds be used to

6

directly impact agriculture.

7

Stakeholders Committee, I felt that the reliability

8

of the system has a higher priority than amount

9

paid.

Additionally, as we

- be used in projects that
As a member of the

Losing part of the crop or not planting at

10

all has a greater economic impact to the farmer than

11

a proposed rate increase.

12

yield depends on a reliable water source to provide

13

the crop or animal with water when needed.

14

cost the producers potential income.

15

To obtain the highest

Delays

There are several initiatives that may assist

16

producers to manage a rate increase.

House Bill

17

1033 is a tax credit intended to help producers that

18

are on County water systems in areas that do not

19

have a State irrigation system.

20

cover the difference between the County and State

21

systems.

22

heard in the Senate Water, Land, and Ag and the

23

Intergovernmental Affairs Joint Committee hearing

24

tomorrow.

25

Farm Bureau has strongly supported this bill through

The credit will

This bill survived cross over and will be

Hawaii Farm Bureau and the Maui County
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the process.
While we have been communicating with our

2
3

members, we also try

4

that everyone send testimony in support of this

5

bill.

6

House Bill 955 will provide a 20 percent tax credit

7

for drought mitigation facilities,

8

ancillary structures.

9

with costs to incorporate water conservation methods

10

- we are also strongly urging

This will level the playing field Statewide.

including

This will assist producers

into their operations.

11

House Bill 1034 and Senate Bill 1504 that did

12

not survive cross over sought to provide funding for

13

the upper ag waterline.

14

since been inserted into the Administration's budget

15

and it too will need everyone's support for passage.

16

When computed, this will provide producers with

17

non-potable water for irrigation at a lower cost.

18

This project needs to be completed as soon as

19

possible.

20

However, the funding has

President Bush's proposed USDA budget has

21

zeroed out Federal funds for the uncontracted phases

22

of this project in Year 2006.

23

restored in the budget.

24

delegation, along with the ag community, will

25

actively lobby for this.

We need to have funds

Our Congressional

Additional assistance is
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1

needed.

2

there must be a commitment to complete the ag

3

waterline and provisions for addressing conservation

4

measures and that there is an implementation plan

5

for ag to have adequate quality and availability of

6

water.

7

Thank you.

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Watanabe.

Members, any questions?

8

9

We do support the proposed water rates, but

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson.

Yes, Warren, I just wondered if

10

you had made any progress at all with regard to the

11

definition of agriculture.

12

mention in your testimony about, well, the

13

illegitimate versus the legitimate farmers, and so

14

are we any closer to coming up with that kind of a

15

definition?

16

MR. WATANABE:

Because I know that you

I did bring it up to the Mayor's attention

17

at our last month's meeting with him, and apparently

18

it's still being reviewed.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

MR. WATANABE:

21

22

Okay.

Yeah, but I know it's something that we too

want to address as soon as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I know, and do you think that

23

where they spoke about

24

kind of alluded to the class structure, do you think

25

that particularly the farming community, where it

you know, let's say you
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1

impacts the farming operations and perhaps your

2

ability to plan and respond to drought conditions,

3

do you think that your organization or a consortium

4

of people that are involved in agriculture would be

5

willing to help let's say the Board of Water Supply

6

and, you know, make recommendations as to who would

7

qualify for a particular class?

8

let's say there's two different classes of

9

agricultural use, one was for, you know, the real

You know, like

10

farming operations and one might be for, you know,

11

let's say soil conservation or something of that

12

sort.

13

MR. WATANABE:

Well, I think we could do it, and I think

14

that's where the ag definition will help.

15

personally, I've always supported -

16

greatest support should be for farmers who are

17

actually producing food and fiber, and I've always

18

taken that position.

19

and there are other avenues for farmers to, you

20

know, generate revenue, but, you know, I always

21

supported that principle.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

For me,

to me the

And I know times have changed

And I think more what I'm thinking

23

about is I think something else that you mention in

24

your testimony to, where that upon verification of

25

certain information or inspection -- I guess what
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1

I'm getting at is would you or others in the farming

2

community be willing to work with let's say the

3

Board of Water Supply or, you know, any -- Real

4

Property Tax, for example, in just coming up with a

5

review process or, you know, even an inspection

6

process that would help to set these rate classes

7

and at least help to let people know, look, what

8

you're doing is not real farming -- you know, once

9

you come up with a definition -- but this is what

10

you'd have to do in order to qualify for that rate.

11

That's kind of what I'm getting at

12

participation in more of a board or a consortium.

13

MR. WATANABE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

CHAIR ANDERSON:

16

question.

17

MR. WATANABE:

l

and your

Yeah, I think we'd be willing to do that.
Okay.

Thanks very much, Warren.

Any other members?

Warren, I have a

Did your membership meet to discuss this?
It was -- I -- you know, it didn't come up

18

to the entire membership, but it did pass the board.

19

It wasn't

20

unanimous decision by the board.

21

CHAIR ANDERSON:

22

MR. WATANABE:

23

CHAIR ANDERSON:

24
25

- just for your information, it wasn't a

And how many members are on your board?
I have eight members.
Eight members.

And how many voted to

support this increase?
MR. WATANABE:

Seven.
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. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

1

2
3

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you very much.

Okay, Members, before we start with

4

questions, I want to draw your attention to a

5

handout that you just received this morning, which

6

is the transmittal to the Mayor of the stakeholders

7

report, and in their transmittal letter they do

8

highlight two recommendations.

9

bring that to your attention.

So I just want to
And, panelists, as we

10

open this up to questions, please feel free to just

11

raise your hand if you'd like to answer the

12

question.

13

directed to one person, we've brought you all here

14

for your input and we'd like to hear from you.

15

if you'd like to respond to a question, just raise

16

your hand and I'll recognize you.

17

open it up now to the members for questions.

18

anybody want to start off?

19
20

21
22
23
24
25

Because even though the question may be

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So I'm going to
Does

Mr. Hokama.

I'm happy to allow any of your

Committee members to go first,
CHAIR ANDERSON:

So

if you prefer.

Well, I didn't recognize a hand, but if

there is somebody, I'd be happy to do that.
Thank you, Mr. Hokama, and thank you for
joining us.
I'm going to let Mr. Kane start, Ms. Johnson,
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and then Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Madam Chair.

3

Forgive me, ma'am, I don't know how to

4

pronounce your last name, so if you can help us, and

5

use the microphone, please.

6

MS. HAJNOSZ:

It's Hajnosz.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Hajnosz, thank you, Ms. Hajnosz.

8

Thank you for the presentation this morning.

I

9

guess one of my main questions, maybe you can help

10

us, and for anybody who has a comment as succinct as

11

possible, I guess one of the main assumptions was

12

the $25.8 million for capital spending and how that

13

correlates with the staffing issues that you also

14

identified being addressed, as well as the

15

historical information with respects to what they've

16

been able to accomplish over the many years.

17

what's the history, where we want to be, and how are

18

we going to be able to achieve that if we're talking

19

about something like this being immediate for '06?

20

MS. HAJNOSZ:

So

Okay, from a historical standpoint, the

21

Department has been able to accomplish about $15

22

million a year in capital improvement.

23

from year to year, but on average we're talking

24

about 15 million.

25

guess, assessment is that they can do 20.

That varies

The Department's current, I
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1

it will take some changes to the way they operate.

2

And ideally they would love to get more engineers,

3

but there is an engineering

4

crisis in the State of Hawaii, with the University

5

of Hawaii just not graduating enough civil engineers

6

that the market needs.

7

the Department of Personnel Services.

8

they're trying to recruit people, engineers from the

9

mainland, to help out.

10

a civil engineering

And so we've been talking to
They are --

So that will help

tremendously if we can get more engineers.

11

The $25 million level really was a

12

recognition that, okay, it can't be business as

13

usual.

14

spending because of all the needs of the actual

15

physical infrastructure.

16

replacement study done, oh, maybe about four years

17

ago by another consultant that was recommending a

18

much higher level of capital expenditures, and the

19

number escapes me at this point, but I know from a

20

revenue fund impact, you know, kind of perspective,

21

they were recommending transferring between 4 and 8

22

million dollars a year from the Revenue Fund to the

23

Capital Reserve Fund and then of course using bonds

24

and Water System Development Fee funding.

25

We need to increase our capital improvement

There was a renewal and

I'm sure that capital spending level was
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1

clearly over $20 million a year.

I mean, it had to

2

be.

3

of replacing your, what, 750 miles of pipe, I think,

4

I don't know exactly what the miles -- the pipe

5

replacement miles are right now, but, you know, you

6

should be targeting something on 2 to 3 percent a

7

year, and I don't think that's happening right now.

8

I mean few utilities are hitting that mark, to be --

9

you know, to be very candid about it.

Just based on the needs of the County in terms

Utilities all

10

over the country are really struggling with how to

11

keep up with their capital program.

12

utilities that do 100 percent of their capital

13

program.

14

percent, 80 percent, that's more along lines.

15

There are a few

You know, they're -- 50 percent, 70

But, you know, we've got to somehow be able

16

to say we need to do things differently if the

17

County recognizes this as a priority and the

18

stakeholders have certainly identified this as their

19

priority, if the County agrees with that, we need to

20

find a way to do more CIP and then how to fund it.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So my question really is how

22

does it correlate -- I mean the reality is that this

23

is a rate structure that's going to go into effect I

24

think July 1st, unless I'm mistaken.

25

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Is the Water Department, historically

2

who has been 15 million, who is saying they can do

3

20 million, which would be a challenge for them at

4

that point, help me justify the difference, the 25.8

5

from what they can do realistically with 20, and in

6

the meantime dealing with ramping up on having

7

recruitment being successful.

8

you know, why are we going to consider 25.8 million

9

when we already realistically have been informed or

10

the signals are very strong that we're not going to

11

be able to accomplish that?

12

presentation that we need to keep the eye on the

13

ball.

14

MS. HAJNOSZ:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And in the meantime,

And I know in your

Right.
That's fine.

But the reality is this

16

is a one-year rate plan -- one-year rate increase

17

with future discussions that will determine the

18

later.

19

correlate justifying 25.8 when we can't do the 25.8

20

and in the mean time we're going to be asking for

21

all this additional money.

22

MS. HAJNOSZ:

So my interest is how are we going to

The way we sort of resolve that gap was to

23

say that we would like to do 25.8, and the way we're

24

going to fund it is through Capital Reserve Funds,

25

which included this $2 million transfer from the
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1

Revenue Fund to the Capital Reserve Funds.

2

also going to use general obligation bonds of 2

3

million -- and I'm sorry I'm looking for the page

4

that I have this here.

5

Capital Reserves of $5.8 million -- oh, there it is.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

MS. HAJNOSZ:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

So we're going to use

Keep in mind my question doesn't have

to do with the source.

8

10

We're

I understand that.
My question has to do with the

ability of the Department to perform.
MS. HAJNOSZ:

And the only reason why I'm answering it

12

this way is because there is a connection between a

13

12 percent rate increase and the level of funding or

14

how you're going to fund the CIP.

15

wanted to do it was recognizing that the Department

16

may not be able to do $25.8 million, we in this

17

stakeholder recommendation letter recognize that and

18

say we will directly fund $15.8 million.

19

additional 10 was going to come from General Fund

20

reserves.

21

difference.

22

And the way we

The

And that's the way we reconciled that

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

The second question I have has

23

to do with what I've been made aware of, and maybe

24

Corp. Counsel can respond or assist us with this.

25

believe I heard you say in your report that the $2
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million transfer doesn't have specific things

2

identified.

3

it seems to be -- and maybe I can get assistance

4

from Corporation Counsel

5

transferred to a Capital Improvement Reserve Fund

6

shall be expended only for specific improvement

7

designated.

8

specifically what that money's going to be used for,

9

and if it's not, then you can't do it.

If we read Section 9.14 of our Charter,

that the funds

So it needs to be identified

And so

10

that's an initial reading that we need assistance

11

from, Chair, if I can, Corp. Counsel to understand,

12

you know, can we do it the way it's being presented

13

to us?

14

be done and we need to make adjustments to the

15

approach and have that direction so we do it the

16

right way, if we can't do it this way.

17

drawing conclusions, by the way, Chair.

18

pointing out something that seems to be a conflict

19

of what was said versus what can be done.

20
21

22

And if not, we need to be told that it can't

CHAIR ANDERSON:

I'm not
I'm just

Mr. Kushi, would you like to speak to

that?
MR. KUSHI:

Yes, Madam Chair, I don't know.

Maybe it's

23

better addressed to the Deputy Corp. Counsel

24

First Deputy Corp. Counsel that advises the Finance

25

Committee, maybe she would know.
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3

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Maybe what we'll do is write a letter to

Corp. Counsel for clarification on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, and we anticipate that you may

4

have not known that.

5

at some future point we're going to have find out

6

where the $2 million is in the budget, if in fact

7

the Mayor's proposal that came down to us adopted

8

what we're talking about.

9

obviously we just got it yesterday, so we're

10

I guess then it comes down to

So that -- you know,

looking.

11

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Right.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

But that to me just seems to be a

13

component that needs to be clarified, because

14

otherwise it really changes the scope of things.

15

anyway, I'll yield the floor at this point.

16

Member Johnson has questions.

17

CHAIR ANDERSON:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So

I know

Okay, Ms. Johnson.
Yes, my question is too about the

19

rate increase, where you can't do it beyond, you

20

know, let's say a one-year period.

21

got a stepped rate increase, I would consider that

22

being adopted during one period of time and then

23

taking effect over, you know, subsequent years.

24

I think maybe what we can do is perhaps, Madam

25

Chair, pose the question also to Corporation

Because you've
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1

Counsel.

Because in other situations we have

2

adopted legislation with a step increase in some

3

measure.

4

make an adjustment, in which case we could change

5

the ordinance, but I do believe that we can look at

6

that as a stepped increase.

7

I'm not sure myself, but that is something that I

8

think we can address.

Now, it could be revisited annually to

So, you know, I just

The other thing that -- and I've looked

9

10

through this report, plus I've looked through some

11

other reports that, you know, I've seen come out of

12

the Committee, and one of the things

- and this has

13

to do with Mr. Watanabe's testimony.

Particularly

14

farmers during periods of drought, they'll put in

15

their own storage systems so that they can store

16

water during the periods of time when they really

17

need it and it's not available.

18

at any kind of an incentive program or any kind of a

19

rebate for people actually coming in and doing their

20

own storage systems because they're going to reduce

21

the impact on the overall water usage?

22

at that at all?

23

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Did the study look

Did you look

No, we did not, but I do know if it's a new

24

farmer that's coming on line -- and am I correct

25

that farmers -- I mean ag customers do pay the Water
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1

System Development Fee, right?

2

Water System Development Fee that new customers have

3

to pay when they come on line to the system.

4

degree that customer is building their own storage,

5

you know, or assisting with the development of

6

source storage or transmission, they get a credit on

7

that fee.

8

aware of for -- that would be for new customers.

9

I donlt know how you would apply it to

10
11

Okay, so there is a

To the

So it1s the only instance I would be
So

retroactively to existing customers.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and that1s something that I

12

think perhaps -- and I donlt know maybe, Madam

13

Chair, at some point we can explore that possibility

14

to look at existing users who don1t have storage

15

currently but who would be willing to put in storage

16

so that during, you know, periods of drought or when

17

they1re let1s say going to have perhaps a negative

18

impact, they1re not part of the problem.

19

actually part of the solution.

20

feeding in, you know, kind of like the, you know,

21

net metering when you would look at, you know,

22

power.

23

because

24

distribute it, like let1s say to a group of farmers

25

in a particular area, they might be able to share

Theylre

I donlt know about

I don1t think that same thing would be true,
you know, unless they had another way to
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that resource.
But I think it would be helpful to look at

2
3

options that are sort of outside the box.

4

residential customers, then, with regard to cisterns

5

or any other kind of supplementation, like water

6

catchment of just rain water that they would use for

7

irrigation on their lawns, you don't look at that or

8

you haven't looked at that either as a possibility?

9
10

MS. HAJNOSZ:

As far as

Not as part of the rate study.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, because, you know, whenever

11

I look at conservation, I always want to look at,

12

well, all right, then there's the other aspect, not

13

only conservation, but actually going beyond

14

conservation and looking at proactive measures that

15

people can take with individual investment to help

16

alleviate the burden.

17

MS. HAJNOSZ:

And that -- you know, you raise a good

18

point, because to the degree that you do implement a

19

more conservation-oriented rate structure, you

20

almost certainly want to couple that with a public

21

education program that says the reason why we're

22

doing -- the reason why we're changing our rate

23

structure to be more conservation oriented is

24

because of this and this and this.

25

the way you can be a part of this solution and

And, you know,
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1

really reduce your bill is by doing, you know,

2

things that you suggested, you know, changing shower

3

heads and toilets and this and that.

4

those two -- I mean, that's ideally how you want to

5

do it.

6

rates and couple that with a very effective public

7

education program.

8
9

So, I mean,

You want to implement conservation-oriented

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I

some thoughts too.

you know, Elliott has

One of the things I would like

10

us to look at, and perhaps, you know, maybe Elliott

11

can give her thoughts on this too, is that because

12

we look at people having an impact, if you create an

13

impact, you should be paying in proportion of that

14

impact, but where you actually alleviate a situation

15

and you have zero impact because perhaps you have

16

your own irrigation system or you have, you know,

17

other -- you drill your own well or, you know,

18

whatever it might be, I think that we should also be

19

rewarding that.

20

you look at people that are off the grid or are

21

feeding back power into our electrical systems, I

22

think we should have that same kind of a philosophy

23

adopted with regard to water.

24

you're either part of the problem or part of the

25

solution.

Because just in the same way that

Because, you know,

And what kind of rewards would there be
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that we could add into this kind of a -- maybe a

2

class, you know, situation or what other kind of

3

incentives could we add into that so that it

4

actually reduces the need to move forward with all

5

these capital expenditures on an accelerated basis?

6

CHAIR ANDERSON:

7

MS. KRASH:

Yes, Ms. Krash.

I wanted to mention that it was a topic of

8

discussion, but we didn't deal with it in terms of

9

crunching the numbers.

It wasn't within the scope

10

of our task, but it is included as one of the four

11

rate policy issues that were addressed in our letter

12

here, that we felt strongly that the structure

13

should address conservation more aggressively and

14

that we realize it needs to be done, probably

15

another committee.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

Thank you.

18

Chair.

19

CHAIR ANDERSON:

20

MR. QUINN:

No, I really appreciate that.

That's all I have right now, Madam

Mr. Quinn.

Thank you.

I'd just like to reinforce

21

Councilmember Johnson's line of questioning on the

22

definition of ago

23

very important issue.

24

people are getting the benefit of agricultural rates

25

and are not doing farming, and it all hinges on the

In my personal opinion, that's a
My feeling is that certain
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1

definition of ago

2

important -- important issue

3

to promote -- the Committee has tried to promote the

4

agricultural industrYI but be better if those

5

preferential rates were geared towards true farmers

6

people that are actually making a living farming.

7

And I think that's an
l

because we are trying

I

And I'm not sure we -- in the past I know

8

we've struggled with the definition

9

reasonable one can be -- we can come up with

but I'm sure a

10

Council members

11

adequate definition of ago

12

not a significant

13

used bYI quote I ag customers I and rightfully SOl if

14

they're in the business

15

saYI a gentleman farmer.

16

significant.

17

for many years but never been resolved.

I

Finance

l

whoever can come up an

I

Because a significant

but a fair amount of water is

l

l

but not if you're

l

shall we

But I think that is

It's been a question that's come up

18

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Ms. Johnson.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

As a follow-up tOOl do you

20

believe

21

you've got people building in remote areas now or

22

stretching the boundaries on agricultural land where

23

it's kind of driving the capital investment to

24

extend lines further or maybe even has an impact on

25

pressure reduction for other

l

Mr. Quinn

l

that particularly where it

l

you know
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1

users, do you believe that we should be looking at

2

those kinds of impacts and that type of I guess rate

3

where people are really, you know, causing let's say

4

more problem for the farming community, you know,

5

because of that use, or do you think that you would

6

not be looking at that so much in the rate

7

structure?

8
9

MR. QUINN:

Initially we certainly didn't consider that in

the rate structure initially.

It may be something

10

that could be considered, but I don't believe that

11

did come up in our conversations in our meetings.

12

I'm not -- I don't feel I know enough about that to

13

really comment about it, but it may be something

14

that we might want to consider talking about, but

15

getting back to that definition of ag, you know, 8

16

to 10 percent of your water is ag usage and

17

contributes about 4 percent to the revenue.

18

is significant that we come up with a definition of

19

ag, I believe, because it does impact the revenues,

20

and we are asking the majority of our ratepayers to

21

in effect subsidize that, so we should be I think be

22

subsidizing the true farming community.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So it

Yeah, and, you know, I guess the

24

reason why I'm asking that question too is because

25

while some people who also do legitimate farming
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1

might have a swimming pool, the incidence of a real

2

farming operation is that if they're really farming,

3

they would very unlikely have time to even use the

4

swimming pool.

5

are going for huge usage, and -- I mean, to me, I

6

look at it and I just see these massive pools and

7

spas and, you know, massive 4,000 to 6,000 square

8

foot homes going up and not much ago, so ...

9
10

MR. QUINN:

So many of these agricultural uses

I agree.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

If we're looking at conservation,

11

that's not conservation to me.

12

Chair.

13

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Thank you, Madam

Yeah, I will note, Members, that I

14

believe it's Kauai County, but I'll have to check my

15

notes, requires ag

16

water rates, you have to demonstrate through

17

documentation that you are making income from ag

18

use.

19

look at.

20

in order to get ag rates, ag

So that might be something that we want to
Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Did the I would say

21

Stakeholders Committee consider presenting to us

22

information regarding some histories about the

23

annual amount of dollars lapsed from CIP projects?

24
25

MS. HAJNOSZ:

I don't think we considered presenting it to

you, but it was certainly part of the analysis.
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Let's see --

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

3

MS. HAJNOSZ:

And what was the analysis findings?

We have it in our report, and let me try to

4

get to that table.

5

much on a historical basis.

6

We actually had it -- I mean we did look at it

7

historically to try to find out -- you know, kind of

8

estimate what the lapse -- lapses would be in the

9

for example, the current -- or the years going

10

forward, and so, for example, for 2007 we were

11

estimating $2.5 million to lapse from the Fiscal

12

Year 2005 Budget.

13

Budget, 2.5 million would be available for 2007.

14

was made quite complicated because of this 18-month

15

window, as you know.

16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And actually we don't have it so
We -

let's see.

Okay.

So, again, from Fiscal Year 2005
It

But for previous years you have

that information?
MS. HAJNOSZ:

I don't have it.

I'm sure we can get it

19

from the Department, but it's not part of our

20

analysis going forward.

21

would be lapsed funds available for Fiscal Year '06

22

and - -

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

We did recognize that there

I'll tell you what I'm getting at.

24

If you're asking us to consider a rate increase that

25

will help take care of 0 and M as well as debt
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1

service and continue to have a healthy Capital

2

Reserve Fund, for me, anyway, I'm going to be very

3

frank,

4

have not shown that this type of request makes sense

5

to me at this time.

6

the Department accomplished all the tasks that was

7

based for the last rate increases in '98,

8

2001?

9

increases?

it's a matter of confidence.

And histories

What have we accomplished?

Has

'99, 2000,

What was the premise of approving those rate
Has the Department accomplished what it

10

said it was going to do with those additional

11

revenues?

12

CHAIR ANDERSON:

13

MR. TENGAN:

Mr. Tengan, could you answer that.

Madam Chair, I don't have that information

14

with me on hand, but historically we haven't been

15

able to do all the CIP that we have budgeted for or

16

planned for, and if we go back to the last rate

17

increase, I believe that it will show that there are

18

some outstanding projects in the amount that were

19

spent for CIP wasn't as projected.

20

fund balances are being carried over into this rate

21

study to determine what's needed for the future.

22

CHAIR ANDERSON:

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

24
25

Thank you, Mr. Tengan.

However, those

Mr. Hokama.

My point is the project still

didn't get done, okay.
MS. HAJNOSZ:

May I?
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1

CHAIR ANDERSON:

2

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Sure.

What I understand from the Department is

3

I mean everybody knows that they have been having

4

some problems in delays in the capital improvement

5

program.

6

approximately $14 million of CIP, and when I say do

7

I mean that they were able to encumber $14 million

8

of CIP in a relatively short amount of time starting

9

probably in July of 2004 through the end of

However, they were able to do

10

December, okay.

11

the project, if it's a design project, if it's a

12

construction project, you know, and so many more

13

complexities.

14

absolutely -- I can relate to your concern, what

15

we're asking for is a 12 percent increase to

16

transfer $2 million to the Capital Reserve Fund,

17

which as of the end of February I believe has about

18

$6 million in there.

19

get drawn down to a point where, you know, even if

20

they wanted to do 25 or was able to do 25, they

21

would not be able to do it.

22

with the more restrictive environment that I'm

23

sensing on bonding for the County, you know, I

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

MS. HAJNOSZ:

A lot of it depends on the size of

And while, Councilman Hokama, I

And that fund will continue to

And you couple that

What makes you say that?

Well, this year they weren't able to sell
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bonds -- or at least for Fiscal Year '06 it appears

2

that the Department of Water Supply will not be able

3

to sell bonds for the capital improvement programs.

4

And I --

5
6

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Council will decide whether or not

we'll sell bonds.
MS. HAJNOSZ:

Okay, that was the assumption that was

8

provided to me, that we had assumed 2 million for

9

our rate recommendation and that was no longer an

10

option.

And I'm looking at it from also a long-term

11

perspective, knowing that what the Department has

12

provided in terms of capital improvement projects

13

out in the long term with this big reservoir out

14

there and in talking to people on the Finance

15

Department, you know, it -

16

somewhere along the line, how are they going to fund

17

this big project, on top of, you know, what I'm

18

hearing about other County projects from the

19

reclamation division.

20

know, wastewater treatment plant upgrade.

21

is where, you know, we're trying

22

may seem farther down the line, but the Department

23

hasn't had a rate increase in three years.

24

they've had problems with getting their capital

25

improvement programs out, but looking at where they

they're going to be

I know they have a big, you

I know that it
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1

are now t looking at where the County has to bet you

2

know t the stakeholders and the consultant feels that

3

there is justification for this 12 percent.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Well t I can tell you the last two

5

years we have as a body supported the Department's

6

capital requests t I thinkt at levels that almost

7

always did not require adjustments.

8

we've put our commitment of about 40 plus t 45

9

million dollars over two years for capital

So I would say

10

improvements.

11

continually ask can you do the projects.

12

told yes t or we wouldn't be asking for that kind of

13

budget request.

14

That's a lot of money.

We
We were

We are aware of some changes in the

15

construction environment t particularly with bidding t

16

for projects t and I think you need to note those

17

kind of specific impacts in the report that may

18

impact whether or not a project moves forward or

19

not t because I too have my barrier -- not barriers

20

but my parameters on what I think is an overpriced

21

project and doesn't become financially responsible

22

to move forward.

23

But nonetheless t you know t I mean for those

24

of us that got seniority on this bodYt I mean we've

25

seen other studies.

We've seen other reports on how
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1

to approach the same situation.

2

the requests, and we still end up with the same

3

situation.

4

increase and you expect me to believe things are

5

going to change?

6

MS. HAJNOSZ:

We've put money to

So you're asking me now for 12 percent

What I want to be clear on is that 12

7

percent is going to raise $3.4 million in water

8

sales revenues.

9

calculation is needed to pay for debt service and

1.4 of that needs to

- by our

10

operating expenses.

$2 million is going to the

11

Capital Reserve Fund, okay.

12

will have enough funds to accomplish whatever level

13

of CIP gets approved in the Fiscal Year '06 Budget.

14

Okay, when we did this rate study, we were asking

15

for $25.8 million, but I know that currently the

16

Fiscal Year '06 Budget is at $20 million, okay.

17

That 12 percent rate increase is still a valid

18

number because that 12 percent represents a $2

19

million transfer from the Revenue Fund to the

20

Capital Reserve Fund, and then the funding of the

21

capital improvement program will be handled from the

22

Capital Reserve Fund, the Water System Development

23

Fee Fund, and Safe Drinking Water Loans now that

24

general obligation bonds are no longer an option.

25

So I just want to make sure that we're all clear

Then the Department
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1

that by giving approval to the 12 percent, you're

2

concurrently giving approval to the $25.8 million.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
at this time.

5

MS. HAJNOSZ:

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

7

CHAIR ANDERSON:

8

MR. QUINN:

9

Which I am not comfortable to do so

I understand.
Okay.

Mr. Quinn, would you like to add to that?

Yes, the Committee -- Councilmember Hokama,

the Committee very much shares your concerns, and

10

that is the motivation for the 25 million

11

recommendation.

12

historically did come up, since I brought it up, and

13

I believe we just went back three or four years just

14

as an example to show the cumulative amount of

15

projects that have not been accomplished.

16

would say almost the overwhelming consensus on the

17

committee was that this condition cannot continue.

18

We need to play an awful lot of catchup.

19

you count all those projects that have been lapsed

20

or that haven't been done yet but that are from

21

previous years, those projects in addition to the

22

current ones add up to probably well over 25

23

million, probably approaching 30 or 40 million

24

dollars a year.

25

The issue of lapsed funds

And I

I mean if

So basically the Committee said, okay,
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1

recognizing that, let's not just be negative.

2

look at the

3

the Department upgrade its CIP productivity, and

4

that's the result -- that's why you see in there a

5

request for an operational audit specifically on the

6

engineering and planning process, the project

7

implementation process, and the Board I believe has

8

recommended an operational audit for the entire

9

Department.

10

Let's

what we can do and how we can help

We came up with many suggestions for the

11

Department to look at, one would be private sector

12

sharing.

13

look at the whole process.

14

pipeline projects together and having them go out as

15

one project, to be managed as one project.

16

the problems is that -- the Department faces, and

17

it's -- it's kind of overwhelming, is that there are

18

so many projects.

19

any given time we were probably tracking 140, 150

20

projects, and that's a lot of projects to be

21

tracking, different stages, where is the -- where is

22

the funding, at what stage is the funding and things

23

like that.

24
25

Obviously we're looking at -- taking a
Perhaps grouping small

One of

I remember as Fiscal Officer at

So the thinking was that maybe that process
could be streamlined.

Maybe we could outsource a
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1

little bit more, even though the Department does

2

out source quite a bit, but maybe we could think more

3

constructively about how we out source these

4

projects.

5

from trying to drive the Department towards that 25

6

million.

So the community didn't want to back away

Now, having said that, they did recognize

7

8

that the Department might not be able to do that in

9

Fiscal Year 2006, achieve the $25 million, and

10

that's why, as Ann has mentioned, there's sort of a

11

fall back in the funding that the actual 12 percent

12

increase funds approximately $15 million of CIP, not

13

25 million, with the fall back that if the --

14

somehow the Department does increase its CIP

15

productivity, they will then be able to come back to

16

you folks and get money from the General Fund.

17

the Committee was very much aware of lapsed funds,

18

and that is what actually is driving the whole

19

request for 25 -

20

CIP.

to achieve a $25 million level of

Thank you.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR ANDERSON:

So

Thank you for your comments.

Members, I have a request for a

23

mid-morning recess.

24

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

(Inaudible)

Go ahead.
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CHAIR ANDERSON:

Okay, go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla, and then

2

we're going to take a recess, Members, for ten

3

minutes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Yeah, one of

5

the biggest problems that I've had, you know, ever

6

since coming to the County or serving on the Council

7

was, you know, how do we spend our money, and part

8

of the problem is all these lapsed funds.

9

know, as you explained, some of these lapsed funds,

So, you

10

you know, knowing that some of these projects are

11

not even started or, you know, started, not

12

completed.

13

how much of those dollars would be utilized for

14

increases that probably was caused from projects

15

that were lapsed years ago?

16

million dollars is going to be projects that's going

17

to be, you know, going forward?

18
19

20

CHAIR ANDERSON:
someone?
MR. TENGAN:

So out of the 25 point million dollars,

Or is this 25 point

Who wants to answer that?

Shall I pick

Mr. Director.

Madam Chair, I'm trying to figure out

21

Mr. Pontanilla's question here.

22

that, please?

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Sure.

Could you restate

We know we have projects

24

in the hopper that hasn't been done or hasn't even

25

been bidded probably, so we have dollar amount

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

WR 3/16/05

63

1

figures for those projects.

2

projects go out for bids or continue our

3

construction, you know, on those projects that are

4

in existence, in most cases, you know, looking at

5

today's environment, the construction environment,

6

I'm sure that some of these projects, the cost has

7

gone up.

8

projects do we still have that hasn't been done or

9

started that may be -- maybe have some increases to

10

the construction costs, and if the 25 point million

11

dollars that is being requested for CIP is any of

12

those projects that have been lapsed included in the

13

that particular request?

14

MR. TENGAN:

So now when these

So I'm trying to say is how many of those

Madam Chair, if I may, I can recall last year

15

from the '04 Budget we bid out one project and that

16

project came in well over the estimate and are in

17

excess of what we thought we should spend on the

18

project and so we did not award the job to a

19

contractor, and that project was carried over and

20

we're in the process of rebidding that -- that

21

project out again by making some adjustments in our

22

'05 CIP Budget.

23

question, but that's one case I can think of where

24

we bid out a project, we thought the price was too

25

high.

I don't know if that answers your

We let the project lapse, and we're rebidding
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1

it again this year.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

For me it's more, you know, if

3

you do have all of these projects with lapsed

4

dollars on it, I'm sure it's a priority that should

5

be completed within the given time frame.

6

MR. TENGAN:

Madam Chair, if I may respond.

If we

if

7

in the preparation of our budget we see that a

8

project from a prior year will not get done or, you

9

know, we won't be able to encumber the funds, then

10

we would probably include that in the

11

budget.

12

well to be drilled in here in Wailuku and we saw

13

that, you know, we wouldn't be able to do it by

14

December 31st,

15

Budget, we would include that project in the '06

16

Budget just to --

17

- in the new

Let's say if in the '04 Budget we had a

'04 and we were working on the '06

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So you would cancel out a

18

project that has been lapsed and going forward in

19

'06 do the project?

20
21

MR. TENGAN:

Correct, in general I would say that's what

we do at the Department.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

lapsed funds,

24

project that has been budgeted for?

25

MR. TENGAN:

So we would be seeing less

in other words, once we cancel out the

No, no, if we don't do the project, you know,
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1

the project or the appropriation automatically

2

lapses at the end of the CIP period.

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

MR. TENGAN:

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

MR. TENGAN:

7

I don't know what you mean by safe.
In other words, savings.

In our mind we just consider that as a

carryover balance to be budgeted in future budgets.

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

MR. TENGAN:

10

And it's considered savings?

Savings.

If you want to call it savings.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

The other thing that I have

11

the other question that I have -- and this is my

12

last question.

13

dollars for CIP, you know, how will we be ensured

14

that all of those projects will be completed and

15

completed on time?

16

look at the public perception, whenever we say we're

17

going to do something, they want to make sure that

18

that project is completed on time, on budget.

19

MR. TENGAN:

If we're to fund 25 point million

And I think, you know, when you

Madam Chair, I will certainly not sit here

20

and guarantee you that we will do $25.8 million for

21

the '06 year.

22

I would have to consider myself crazy.

23

assurance that you can do that.

24

intangible or unforeseen circumstances that may come

25

up.

For me to do that, I would think that
There's no

There's so many

One may be high bids, one may be land problems,
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1

you know, and there's a multitude of things that

2

could corne up that could stall a project.

3

don't think anybody in his right mind would sit here

4

and tell you, yes, we will do 25.8.

5

can try, but I won't make that guarantee.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR ANDERSON:

9

We certainly

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.

I have a request for a recess.

8

So I

So we're

going to take ten minutes, and, well, let's

10

reconvene at five to 11:00.

And, Members, just so

11

you know, we are going to end the meeting as close

12

to noon as we possibly can, because people have

13

travel arrangements.

14

spend this next hour getting some real succinct

15

answers to your questions.

16

recess.

So I'm hoping that we can

This meeting is in

(Gavel) .

10:43 a.m.

17

RECESS:

18

RECONVENE:

19

CHAIR ANDERSON:

11 : 00 a. m.

(Gavel).

Water Resources Committee

20

meeting of March 16th is reconvened.

Before we open

21

up the questions, Members, I would just like to

22

refocus on the purpose of this panel in today's

23

meeting, and that is to ask questions specific to

24

the Water Rate Study.

25

do that now, and I think it's real important that we

We only have an hour or so to
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1

focus on those questions that will give us answers

2

going into budget for this request for a water rate

3

increase.

4

about -- behind CIP and these various other very

5

important issues at a later time, but Ilm hoping

6

that we can focus our questions on the Water Rate

7

Study.

8

Ms. Tavares.

9

We can discuss the policy and philosophy

So Ilm going to open it up now for members.

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

First of all, thank

10

you for those opening comments, because I think we

11

can debate CIP to death, and would take longer than

12

one day, and we will probably get into that in great

13

detail during the budget period and when the

14

Department will be more aware of what kinds of

15

information we need.

16

thank you, Ms. Hajnosz, for the presentation.

17

donlt know if you heard that I was the one who was

18

so critical about the written report, but I was.

19

Illl take credit for that part.

20

it seemed so technical, even the executive summary

21

was difficult to understand.

22

presentation first, that stuff would have made a

23

whole lot more sense.

24

appreciate that you were able to put this in and you

25

renewed my faith in engineers, but thank you very

I wanted to, first of all,

And it was because

So if we had this

So, you know, I really
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1

much for the -- they like to speak their own

2

language, right?

3

and the public could understand more clearly what

4

things you looked at and how you arrived at the

5

decisions that you did -- or the recommendations

6

that you have in here.

Making it presentable so that we

I'm going to question about one of your

7

8

slides that talked about the key assumptions, and

9

could you give us a little more detail about how you

10

figured the projected growth at 2 percent a year,

11

when I think the number that Maui Electric uses is 3

12

point something percent per year in growth.

13

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Sure.

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Thank you.

What we do in our rate studies is we take a

16

look -- historical look at services.

And so what we

17

did in our

18

is -- it's Table 2 of our report -- is we took a

19

look from 2001 to 2003 actual numbers and then we

20

looked at 2004 from the sort of estimated

21

standpoint, because it was not yet done, and then we

22

look at it by meter size.

23

out all the services by meter size, so how many

24

five-eighths inch, how many three-quarter, one inch,

25

and we look at the growth over the years for each

- and this is a table in our report

And so we basically break
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1

one of those categories.

For '01 through '04 the

2

average annual growth was 2.B.

3

about 2.B over that four-year time period/ okay.

So every year it was

4

Then what we do is talk to/ you know

- with

5

input from the stakeholders/ input from the

6

Department of Water Supply/ what do they think

7

growth is going to be like in the future/ and

B

everybody did say we thought that growth was going

9

to be high/ and so there was a lot of reason for us

10

to be using a 2.5 or higher growth scenario.

11

However/ being conservative rate analysts that we

12

are/ we always try to put some degree of

13

conservatism in our estimates to say that we don't

14

think -- you know/ in case revenues don't meet

15

projections/ we don't want you to be short on 0 and

16

M/ we certainly don't want you to be short on debt

17

service.

1B

conservatism to our growth projection.

19

And so we applied a certain degree of

Now/ on the water sales side/ we did go with

20

the historical consumption.

Over that same time

21

period/ 2001 through 2004 was 1.5 percent/ and we

22

essentially said/ okay/ you know/ in talking to the

23

Department and stakeholders/ that we will give on

24

that number and say/ okay/ we sort of balanced the

25

scales to say growth -

there may not be as many
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1

hookups, but water sales, you know, may increase,

2

okay.

3

somewhere to say, you know, we don't want to -- we

4

never want to over project our revenues.

5

bad.

6

So we've tried to kind of have a happy medium

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

That's

Did you have an opportunity -- Madam

7

Chair.

Did you have an opportunity to talk with the

8

Planning Department regarding what community plan

9

regions were designated that are not zoned or

10

developed that may come up in the future?

11

part of the mix of what you looked at?

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Was that

We didn't talk to the Planning Department

13

for the County, but we

14

the Planning Department for the Department of Water

15

Supply who interacts with the Department -- or the

16

Planning Department for the County.

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

18

MS. HAJNOSZ:

19

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

20

we were interacting with

Okay.

So we were getting input from her.
Okay, thank you very much.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

21

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Members, any other questions?

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I won't.

Mr. Kane.

I'm getting scoldings here.

23

Don't ask CIP questions, okay.

The question I had

24

is just to provide clarity on the monthly water

25

service charges, Ms. Hajnosz.

Your opening comments
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1

or in your presentation you gave us a comparison,

2

and I made the comparison parallel to what we've

3

been doing as a Council and policy decision

4

regarding Solid Waste, and you actually recognize

5

that in the comparison between the other islands in

6

one of your later exhibits.

7

My point being, you made the point about the

8

five-eighth inch where it's existing 5.60, proposes

9

6.50, if it were cost for service it would actually

10

be about $14.

11

better understanding of the discussion there on

12

what

13

the 6.50, as an example, and not a higher figure

14

which would -- and if I'm mistaken, how would that

15

correlate to actually having usage increase as high

16

as we have, the 12 percent, and I'm not saying

17

I'm not categorizing.

18

and putting it here where you've already stated -

19

and I'm sure that the body was made aware of the

20

cost for service is extremely low compared to what

21

it should be.

22

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Help me understand maybe

- what did it make

- or get a

what made it settle on

I'm just saying reducing that

Okay, as I mentioned, we have this 12

23

percent overall rate increase.

24

your two fees, your service charge fee and your

25

usage charge fee, right?

It's comprised of

So what you basically need

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

72

WR 3/16/05

1

to do is to between those two fees balance off where

2

you're going cost of service wise and where you're

3

going with collecting the amount of revenue you need

4

to get.

5

kind of hold certain things fixed.

6

in the three blocks, the usage charge, we held the

7

$1.42 fixed.

8

certain amount of revenue from that first block.

9

Then we had to go to the second and third block and

10

the service charge fee and say how much revenue are

11

we going to get from those other fees, okay.

12

So we -- you can hold -- you'll need to
So, for example,

That meant we were going to get a

We compared to cost of service.

We -

we say

13

how much of an increase is it going to be if we

14

increase our monthly service charge, you know, to $6

15

or $7 or $8 or whatever, we try various levels, and

16

then we look at the bill impacts of keeping the

17

first block the same and then increasing the monthly

18

service charge.

19

very high billing packs for low water users, which

20

is the opposite of what we wanted to

21

wanted to prevent that.

22

kept the first block at $1.42, to kind of shield

23

those low users.

24
25

That analysis basically resulted in

you know, we

That was the reason why we

And so we said, okay, we can't really go much
higher than $6.50 or else we're going to really
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1

start impacting those low water users to the point

2

that they're going to be experiencing a 12 percent

3

rate increase.

4

and have them have a less than 12 percent rate

5

increase.

6

Here, I'm looking at this.

7

for example, you will see that in a five-eighth inch

8

meter with a bimonthly usage of 30,000 gallons a

9

month is getting a 10.7 percent rate increase.

And we really wanted to shield them

And so that's sort of the philosophy.
In some of our tables,

10

That's what they're going to experience in their

11

bill.

12

at, and target in terms of being less than the

13

overall 12 percent, okay.

And that was the target that we were looking

So, again, we were looking for something less

14
15

than 12 percent.

16

first block fixed.

17

service on the existing monthly service charge, but

18

we couldn't move too high because it would have

19

increased -- it would have increased the bill too

20

high.

21
22

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We knew we were going to keep the
We wanted to move to cost of

Okay.

Because you're trying to

protect the small user, okay -MS. HAJNOSZ:

Because everybody gets that monthly service

charge, right?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Right.
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1

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Yeah.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And although -- so I guess I'm just

3

trying to understand the balance and how you folks

4

as well as the Water Rate Stakeholder Committee

5

arrived at this proposed balance.

6

hypothetically -- and I don't know if it was posed

7

in this way, that the monthly water service

8

charge -- and in this case this is monthly, versus

9

the billing is bimonthly, so that

And say

- we have to look

10

at double this, actually, on a bimonthly bill,

11

correct?

Is that correct?

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

Yes.
So the 5.60 actually existing now

is -- is 11.20 per month.

15

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Correct.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

So just to be clear with that,

17

so if this proposed number was in fact higher, then

18

you know what you'd be getting, unless you have an

19

actual cancellation of service, but that's a fixed

20

number.

21

variability there.

Whereas under the usage, there's

22

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Uh-huh, yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And so by promoting

if there's a

24

discussion on conservation efforts or being more

25

aggressive in promoting that, wouldn't the --
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1

wouldn't the Water Department be getting a more

2

reliable source of revenue if this number was

3

increased, the percentage of the increase on this

4

side was actually less than what it is currently

5

proposed?

6

revenue that you can predict and at the same time

7

still protect the small user by having less of an

8

overall increase in their rate?

9

increasing two sides on this, service charge, which

Wouldn't you be getting a more stable

Because you're

10

is fixed, as well as the usage charge by the rate

11

increase in the second and third tier.

12

I'm just

13

act.

14

MS. HAJNOSZ:

So, again,

I'm trying to figure out the balancing

You're absolutely right with regards to if

15

we increased the monthly service charge to a higher

16

level, that would be a more stable form of revenue.

17

Right now the Department is getting 2 point

18

something, less than $3 million from the service

19

charge revenues.

20

levels up to cost of service level, it would be a

21

number like

22

they'd like to see that stable stream of revenues

23

coming in, but as you suggested, we had to balance

24

it.

25

not want to go lower than $1.42.

If we brought those service charge

more like $7 million.

So, sure,

We did keep the first block the same.

No one wants to go
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1

backwards.

2

what we had to do was say, you know, how are we

3

going to shield the lower customer -

4

customer so that their bill impact will be less than

5

12 percent.

6

And we did that by raising the service charge.

7

five-eighth inch meter is going up 16 percent, okay,

8

so greater than the system increase, really, and

9

But we did keep that at $1.42 and then

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

MS. HAJNOSZ:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

13

the low user

That was really what our parameter was.
That

The 5.60 to 6.50?

Yes.
5.60 to 6.50, yes.

16 percent, okay.

You will see that all the

rest of the meters go up more like 20 percent.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Yes.

Okay, they're going up higher.

Because,

16

again, we were trying to say let's get -- let's inch

17

closer to cost of service but we -- you know, the

18

stakeholders were very adamant that we wanted to

19

shield the low user in this rate proposal.

20

that could not have been more clear.

21

why we really tried hard to look for ways to do that

22

and keeping the first block the same and not

23

increasing the service charge to a higher level.

24

Again, in Kauai and Big Island, those numbers are

25

like $9 a month or $12, I think, on the Big Island.

And so that's
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They're much higher.

2

Honolulu is I think 3.50 for -- per bill, you know,

3

so it's $1.75 or something.

4

policy decision.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Honolulu is much lower.

It's very low.

It's a

Or was it cost for services because

6

they have a greater number that it's spread out over

7

a greater population and that would bring down their

8

costs as well?

9

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Part of it is that, but it's also a policy

10

decision for when we do a cost of service analysis,

11

there are -- you know, you basically have this pot

12

of costs and you need to apportion it to different

13

functions.

14

apportioned a certain amount to -- to be collected

15

through the service charge that's generally

16

customer-related charges, okay, billing,

17

administration, but it can also be things like, you

18

know, repairing meters and taking care of your

19

meters, right?

So we have a pot of costs and we

And so Honolulu has decided we're just going

20
21

to be purely passing on billing costs through that

22

charge.

23

we're going to do billing plus meter -- plus some

24

capacity charges, actually, because you've got these

25

large stand by costs and we're going to put some of

All the other counties have basically said
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1

that in our customer charge to provide more revenue

2

stability, is exactly why you do it.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I guess my final question on this

4

water service charge and then I'll yield, Chair, is

5

on the higher end folks -

6

briefly the one and a half up through the eight inch

7

on the monthly service charge numbers.

8

how do those numbers compare with the other

9

counties?
MS. HAJNOSZ:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

14
15
16

How does -

Have you looked at that?

10

13

and you did reference

They're lower.
So these are lower?

The proposed rates for water service charges

are lower than Kauai and Big Island.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And Oahu, again, as a policy as you

described, they're overall lower?
MS. HAJNOSZ:

They're much lower.

In fact, I don't think

17

it matters what size meter you are, because they're

18

cutting a bill and they haven't distinguished

19

between the cost to cut a bill for five-eighth inch

20

meter and the cost to cut a bill for a two inch

21

meter, you know.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Yeah, yeah.

In reality, there could be significant

24

costs, but they haven't distinguished, so it's all

25

meter sizes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
YOUr

Thank you for your comments.

Thank

Chair.

3

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Ms. Johnson.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

One of the slides you make the

5

statement -- and this is in regard to the rate

6

policy issue number 2r the rates should encourage

7

conservation.

8

says current structure does not provide enough

9

incentive for residential conservation due to high

I guess the second bullet point it

10

average use in the County.

11

there is high average use in the County to begin

12

with?

13

MS. HAJNOSZ:

So did you look at why

Was that the topic of your discussion?
I don't know if we looked at whYr but we

14

sure looked at the numbers r and the numbers were

15

significantly higher in Maui County.

16

five-eighth inch meter r where the average bimonthly

17

usage was something like 32 r OOO gallons per

18

bimonthly period r whereas on -

19

that usage level was something like 11 r OOO r you

20

know -- I'm sorrYr it was -- yeahr 11 r OOO.

21

was much lower.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

MS. HAJNOSZ:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

Looking at a

the other counties

So it

In the other counties?

In the other counties r yeah.
And I think perhaps one of the

things that I -- you know r and I don't know r againr

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS r INC.
(808) 524-2090

WR 3/16/05

80

1

this is one of the issues that we've had as a

2

challenge is many generations live under one roof

3

here in Maui CountYr and also with the housing

4

crunch there are many people that have actually

5

operated r you know r albeit illegallYr they have

6

converted a lot of their rooms into individual

7

housing units.

8

the CountYr in Central r it's happening in West Maui r

9

Upcountryr and so that may be the reason for the

10

So I know it's happening allover

increase of residential usage.

11

But do we have any way that if let's say it

12

were to be determined that an average household r if

13

we were to study that r can you account or can your

14

you know r look at that?

15

don't mind if it's an individual family living there

16

and I don't even mind if due to a housing crunch

17

you've got to move in relatives or friends r if you

18

can't find a place to liver that's part of the

19

problem r but I think everybody then should pay in

20

some measure because they're having this impact.

21

it's not like it's one family that's just really not

22

very conservation minded.

23

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Because you know r frankly I

So

What we like to do in our rate design is to

24

base it as much as we can on objective criteria.

25

And in the case of water usage we would like to base
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1

it on some engineering criteria related to the size

2

of the meter and the maximum flow or the average

3

flow that can come out of a five-eighth inch meter.

4

So if you do have -- I mean this is a problem on the

5

Big Island.

6

meters that were using hundreds of thousands of

7

gallons of water a month, you know, because

8

probably, as you described, they had ohana housing

9

and things like that.

You know, you had five-eighth inch

So what we -- what we have to

10

do when we take a look

11

looking more at rate design issues is take a look at

12

what an average five-eighth inch meter can put out,

13

maybe what's the max, and take a look at moving the

14

rate blocks, the usage blocks to accommodate a

15

five-eighth inch meter.

16

typical residential meter, we would basically be

17

focusing usage on the residential class.

18

Now, in

- if we're going to be

And because that is a

if there are instances where

19

you're on a five-eighth inch meter and you're using

20

substantially above that, you probably should be on

21

a three-quarter inch meter.

22

actually adopted an ordinance or regulation -- rule,

23

I think, in their Water Department that said we are

24

going to monitor or audit your usage, and if you

25

put -- say you're going -- you apply for a new meter

On the Big Island they
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1

and you say you're going to use it as a five-eighths

2

inch meter but then a year later we come back and we

3

see you're using it more like a three-quarter inch

4

meter, you know what, you're going to -- you're

5

going to have to pay for installing that

6

three-quarter inch meter and you're going to have to

7

pay the additional facility charge for that, which

8

is quite a bit higher when you move from a

9

five-eighth inch to a three-quarter inch, you know.

10

So there are ways that you can balance the

11

rate design, your rates and take your facility

12

charges, you know, and -- you know, with some

13

assistance from, you know, the meter readers, you

14

know, have some people out there going, yeah, this

15

guy really should be on a three quarter inch.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and I agree with you,

17

because what's happening is you'll see seven or

18

eight cars in the driveway and then you kind of

19

gauge, well, there's more than just one family

20

living in that home.

21

I have is because, you know, you're using these as

22

average high residential use, that is also going to

23

impact what your averages are when you're looking at

24

your study and when you're looking at conservation.

25

Let's say if you do have a real family with only,

I guess the other concern that
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1

you know, like let's say four or five family members

2

in a home, their usage

3

conserve, that's going to be much lower.

4

you're basing it on this higher overall residential

5

use, your average is going to be higher so then it's

6

going to look like they're conserving when they're

7

not really, you know, doing so.

Whereas if

So, you know, I don't know how to really

8
9

and then if they go to

address that, other than I guess through the

10

measures that you had spoken about.

11

include, though, as part of this, you know, whether

12

it's a class or whether it's an examination, how

13

would you address that, then, in looking at I guess

14

whether it's enforcement or how does the Big Island

15

do it and how would you recommend that we address

16

that issue?

17

MS. HAJNOSZ:

So would that

I think we would look at those engineering

18

standards for meters and use that as our guide to

19

how we set our blocks.

20

did it on Kauai, where we said a five-eighths inch

21

meter, you know, roughly 600 gallons -- uses 600

22

gallons per day type of usage times, you know, 30

23

days, you've got about 20,000 gallons per month.

24

And we said, well, let's just spread that over

25

since they use bimonthly too, we're going to spread

I mean that's exactly how we
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1

that over a two-month period and say, you know, any

2

reasonable five-eighth inch meter is not going to be

3

using more than 20,000 gallons or a bimonthly

4

period.

5

like I said the average is more like 32,000 gallons.

Now, on Maui that number is -- you know,

Okay, so you can see where we're getting the

6

7

fourth -- I mean the third block -

the first block

8

on Kauai I believe is ten, then is goes 20, and then

9

it goes 40 for the residential -- for the

10

five-eighth inch meter.

11

would be something to look at for Maui if we decided

12

to go for the residential rate, you know, we might

13

have to stretch out those blocks a little to

14

accommodate the fact that you've got high usage, but

15

that's typically how we would approach it.

16

really want to stick to objective criteria as much

17

as we can.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19
20

So, you know, I think that

We

Yeah, and not get into where

you're examining every specific household.
MS. HAJNOSZ:

But the one rate design criteria we do want

21

to use is to say that when you have three rate

22

blocks, for example, the highest rate block is the

23

rate block that you want to discourage use in,

24

right?

25

see about, you know, 10 to 15 percent of your usage

That's the high rate.

So we would like to
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in that block.

2

50 percent in that third block, you know, because of

3

the way the rate structure is.

4

want to see

5

here so we can get a steeper conservation-oriented

6

rate structure.

7

conservation oriented, but it's how you design it,

8

how steep it gets.

9

On Maui, you know, you've got 40 or

So, you know, we

we want to look for some transition

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because the structure is

Yeah, and I think you're getting

10

the aberration here in Maui County because of this

11

multi-generational, you know, people living under

12

one roof or extended family or people who are in

13

some instances not even related, just trying to put

14

a roof over their heads.

15

know, that bears more investigation, Madam Chair,

16

because, you know, I just think that you're not

17

getting perhaps a true picture of what an individual

18

living unit would be, but then I guess it's our

19

problem to divide what an individual living unit is,

20

given the current housing situation.

21
22
23

CHAIR ANDERSON:

So I think that's -- you

Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

So, thank you.
Members?

Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

I'm looking at one

24

of the slides that was presented, and I think Member

25

Kane also touched on this.

On the general rates for
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1

a five-eighth inch meter, what would be the

2

bimonthly usage of 9,000 gallons -- what would be

3

the increase in the rates for that particular user

4

group?

5

MS. HAJNOSZ:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

MS. HAJNOSZ:

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

Are you looking at this slide?
Yeah, that one.

I'm sorry, can you repeat your question?
Yeah, you know for that first

five-eighth inch

10

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9,000 gallons bimonthly

12

usage, and then with the new increase, the bimonthly

13

increase from current would be $1.80?

14

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Yes, $1.80 over two months.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, what percentage of

16

increase would that be?

17

handout that was given to us.

18
19

MS. HAJNOSZ:

It would be less than 10 percent, maybe 8

percent.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

MS. HAJNOSZ:

22

I'm comparing with a

8 percent?

Something like that, yeah.

$1.80 over the

24.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

MS. HAJNOSZ:

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Yeah, it's less than 10 percent.
Less than 10 percent?
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1

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Yes.

Yeah, probably 8.

2

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, I note over here for

3

35,000 gallons it's like 9.7.

4

probably high 7's and 8 percent, yeah?

5

MS. HAJNOSZ:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR ANDERSON:

8

9
10

Yes.
Thank you.
Members, any

other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I have a question, please.

Oh, I'm

sorry.
CHAIR ANDERSON:

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

14

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.

11

13

So I'm assuming it's

Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
What does it take to implement your

customer base recommendation in your proposal?
MS. HAJNOSZ:

Right now the general use rates for the

15

County include all customers, right, except ag and

16

non-potable.

17

separate out -- at a minimum we would like to

18

separate out residential users, because they make up

19

about, you know, a good more than 75 percent of the

20

County's customers.

21

that is, again, because residential customers really

22

represent the highest potential for conservation.

23

They're the ones that are washing their cars and

24

watering their lawns and all that kind of stuff.

25

They're the ones that we would really like to target

And so what we would like to do is to

And the reason we want to do
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1

for conservation.

And so at a minimum we would like

2

to split that out.
We have data from the Reclamation Division

3

4

that has provided us with a pretty good break out of

5

the five-eighth inch meters, okay.

6

there are some areas of miscategories and

7

misclassifications in that data, but we feel pretty

8

good that we've gotten to that first step, that we

9

could probably do a single-family rate with not a

We know that

10

whole lot of problems.

11

step would be to have a multi-family rate, and this

12

would take care of perhaps your duplexes, triplexes,

13

for sure four-plexes, and then all your apartments

14

and condos, okay.

15
16
17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

But the next step, the ideal

So what does it entail to make it

happen?
MS. HAJNOSZ:

What we would need to do for that is to get

18

more information on those multi-family complexes but

19

include not only, you know, who they are, I mean we

20

probably know who they are, but we need to know how

21

many units each one of those has.

22

got apartment complexes with four units and you've

23

got apartment complexes with 400 units, you know.

24

It's a big range, so how do you design a rate when

25

you've got such a huge range of usage?

Because you've

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

WR 3/16/05

1

89

What you do for multi-family rates is you

2

design a rate structure on a per unit basis.

And

3

you say, for example, a single-family

4

single-family rate we'll go -- you know, zero to

5

10,000 gallons would be your first block, but for a

6

multi-family rate -

7

would be maybe zero to 8,000, recognizing that there

8

isn't going to be any outdoor, you know, car washing

9

and outdoor irrigation, okay.

for the

multi-family unit, the rate

So a multi-family

10

complex manager or owner then would be able to say

11

we have 8,000 gallons per unit in our first block

12

times, you know, however many units he has, 100

13

units, you know, so it would be that 8,000 times,

14

you know, 800 units, or whatever, that would be his

15

first block, okay.

16

And so that is the ideal way to design

17

multi-family rates.

It's going to be

it's going

18

to cost some money to get that data.

19

had discussions with some survey firms.

20

some discussions with MECO to see if perhaps MECO

21

already has this data to be able to get the units

22

for these apartment complexes.

23

the apartment complexes on the rate schedule that

24

they're on right now do not -- they're all in that

25

third block, right?

In fact we've
We've had

Because, you know,

And there's not much of a
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1

conservation signal that we're giving to those

2

apartment complex owners or managers, because

3

they're all in that third block.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So everything can be done within

5

the County's purview?

6

type of notice with the Public Utilities Commission

7

or State Water Resource Commission or Land and

8

Natural -

9

MS. HAJNOSZ:

You don't need to file some

I'm just asking.

Yeah, not that I'm aware of.

As long as

10

it's under municipal system, then I don't think

11

you're subject to the PUC.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

My other question

- and

13

thanks for all your comments on that customer base

14

class program.

15

the 12 percent does not go through, obviously

16

certain things needs to be done.

17

the comment of reducing 0 and M requirements.

18

question is very simplistic.

19

that now, then, reducing your 0 and M costs?

20

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Part of your presentation is that if

One was your
So my

Why aren't you doing

I think right now the Department is

21

projecting their 0 and M based on current operations

22

and future operating cost increases.

23

when new sources of supply come on line and new -- I

24

think there's a new water contract that is -- that

25

has increased their cost, and so that's basically
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1

how they come up with their 0 and M.

I mean I think

2

in the process they have tried to reduce wherever

3

they can, and they haven't had any additional

4

revenues in terms of rate increase for the last

5

three years, so they certainly have been, you know,

6

decreasing their 0 and M, but more importantly, I

7

mean, this is sort of a finer point for the rate

8

analysis, but their -- their cash fund in the

9

Revenue Fund, they've been drawing on that.

You

10

know, I mean so it's not like their -- their

11

revenues have been totally covering their operating

12

expenses and debt service.

13

coming down.

14

That balance has been

Okay.

So when you get on that be kind of situation,

15

your revenues are not meeting your operating and

16

debt service expenses, that's when you start looking

17

at the negative income potential scenario.

18

that's what we're seeing for 2006, that there's a

19

potential for negative net income if either the

20

rate -- if we don't get a 5 percent rate increase or

21

if -- you know, the way to avoid that would be to

22

say, well, we just aren't going to be able to hire

23

those people or we're going to have to really cut

24

down on sort of more of the optional, you know,

25

expenses even more.

Every organization does have
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1

some optional expenses, travel-related things or

2

you know, you can cut those down.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Your requirements are the net

4

number that it's going to take?

5

assuming when you expand the system, you expect an

6

additional customer base to enter the revenue

7

stream.

8
9

10
11

MS. HAJNOSZ:

That's right.

Because I'm

And the 3.4 represents on the

rate increase, but that larger piece of the pie
takes into account customer growth.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

I know that the Water

12

Stakeholders Committee sent in on a separate

13

letterhead a letter to us, or from the Board of

14

Water Supply.

15

have suggestions regarding Engineering Division,

16

some others to address operational concerns which,

17

to me, still costs money, so is this something that

18

you folks are recommending for immediate

19

implementation?

20

of these changes.

Part of it -- toward the end they

21

MS. HAJNOSZ:

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

It doesn't take money to make some

Are you asking about the audit?
No, I'm asking about your

23

recommendations regarding going out and seeking

24

private engineering firms, grouping of similar CIP

25

projects, doing some self-assessment or
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1

re-evaluation of priorities, assistance from State

2

DAGS.

3
4

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Members, that's on page 3 and 4 of the

very last exhibit on the March 14th letter.

5

MR. TENGAN:

Madam Chair.

6

CHAIR ANDERSON:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8

CHAIR ANDERSON:

9

MR. TENGAN:

Right, Mr. Hokama?
That's correct.

Mr. Quinn.

Madam Chair, may I?

10

CHAIR ANDERSON:

11

MR. TENGAN:

Who's speaking?

Oh, Mr. Tengan.

Sorry.

Yes, we've looked at -- and worked on most of

12

the items as were listed in that implementation

13

plan.

14

like -- well, my conclusion was that that program

15

wouldn't work out because we would still need to

16

supervise the DAGS personnel, and that supervision

17

would have had to be done within our offices where

18

their engineers could be working directly with our

19

engineers in determining what's required in plan

20

reviews -- excuse me

21

I've had discussions with DAGS, and it seems

and things like that.

I've had several discussions with private

22

engineering firms, again, engineers would have to be

23

dedicated to the Department, whereby they could corne

24

into the office and work within our office.

25

something that might be more workable, but at this
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1

point in time we don't have any space for the

2

engineers to bring anybody in.

3

concern is that when our engineers review plans that

4

are done by private consultants, they still need to

5

go through the plans and do a lot of -- I'll call

6

them editing, where they would red line the plans

7

for corrections to be made.

8
9

And the other

And so, you know, there's some question as to
how clearly does the engineering consultants as a

10

group understand what our water system requirements

11

are and how much emphasis to put on these

12

requirements, because we always need to return plans

13

for corrections, but that's something that might be

14

workable.

15

internally, the Engineering Division head and myself

16

have talked to the engineers and, you know, offered

17

some ideas as to how they may be able to reduce

18

their work and assign certain kinds of work to

19

technically lower level positions.

20

With regard to looking at what we can do

This is something that we need to seriously

21

sit down with the engineers and try to find some

22

solutions, because there might be something in house

23

that we can do.

24

did take a look at -- in preparing our CIP we did

25

take a look at projects that could be combined

And as was mentioned earlier, we
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1

whereby instead of a multitude of contracts being

2

issued we could issue just one contract taking care

3

of several projects.

4

were with that, but I believe there were some

5

attempt and there was some projects that were

6

combined or can be combined.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I don't know how successful we

Okay, well, thank you for your
One thing that

and maybe

8

response, Mr. Director.

9

I just missed it, so maybe the Director or their

10

consultant can help me.

11

CIP basis and projections to create a five-year plan

12

is based on some of the planning requirements that

13

you've been made aware of.

14

obviously includes your Planning Division and

15

ability to perform.

16

of -

17

or have you addressed it somewhere else in your

18

detailed report?

19

MR. TENGAN:

I'm assuming part of the

Part of your 0 and M

Am I missing something because

I don't see it pretty much addressed in here

Madam Chair, I don't think Mr. Hokama's

20

concern has been addressed directly within the rate

21

study, but we do have within our operations --

22

operating budget amounts prepared for the expansion

23

of the Planning Division to bring on additional

24

employees and for additional office space, and

25

that's included in the budget that's pending or -
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yeah, pending before the Council now.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, Mr. Director, thank you for

3

that.

The reason I bring it up, Chair, is that

4

we're well aware of the efforts of the County to

5

update General Plan and the eventual move to

6

Community Plans, but one of the key planning

7

documents that we refer to and it's part of the Code

8

and the Charter is the Water Use Development Plans,

9

and obviously funds are going to need to be applied

10

to take care of that requirement.

11

whether it be realistic or not, asks for annual

12

updates to that plan.

13

The Charter,

Obviously the Department has many, many tasks

14

to do, but I think if you're going to tie in a

15

multi-phase, major capital improvement program, it's

16

got to make sense not only to the whole system but

17

regionally too within the community plan districts.

18

And so I bring that up because a chunk of this is

19

going to address 0 and M, and I would hate for us to

20

later say, oh, we forgot to include the planning

21

component of the operational and maintenance budget,

22

you know.

23

because more than likely it's going to be CIP

24

improvements that's going to come out of the Water

25

Use Development Plan or not, I think we need to give

Whether they want to add it with the CIP,
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it it's responsible attention.
CHAIR ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

I do appreciate

3

those comments, because I too feel the Water Use and

4

Development Plan is the start, really, of where we

5

need to spends our funds in order to have a really

6

viable plan for the future of -- future development

7

of source and transmission for the growth of the

8

County.

9

Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, I just have one quick

10

question, and it was in regard to something that

11

Mr. Hokama had said about, you know, tracking I

12

guess this usage or getting the data that you need

13

in order to develop some of this additional

14

information.

15

all, you know, to look at, you know, what's going

16

out?

17

in -- living in units, you can judge more

18

effectively too by wastewater.

19

coordinated with them?

20

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Have you worked with Wastewater at

Because sometimes in terms of who's living

Have you -- have you

We have talked to them about their data,

21

because their data is -- they've got it by sewer

22

class codes that, you know, are single family,

23

multi-family, and they're much more stratified than

24

the Water Department, so we do have their data, and

25

that's the data that we took an initial cut at, but
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1

we are -- but there are some -- you know, we need to

2

make some corrections on them and go out and do some

3

verifications of some of that data, but we've looked

4

at it purely from the standpoint of accounts, not on

5

the other end of it, you know, the usage.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

MS. HAJNOSZ:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Not yet.

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

11

CHAIR ANDERSON:

panelists each a chance to give us their comments.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

CHAIR ANDERSON:

16

Go ahead.

You know, I was going to give the

13

15

Thanks very much.

Ms. Tavares.

10

12

Okay.

Oh, okay.

Before we close the meeting, so if you'd

like to go ahead and ask your question, Ms. Tavares.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah, I think it might be a simple

17

one.

It has to do with the transmittal from the

18

Water Department to you as Chair of the Committee

19

through Mr. Arakawa, the Mayor, March 11th, and it

20

was the response to the questions I guess that your

21

Committee sent over to the Water Department.

22

MS. HAJNOSZ:

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24

CHAIR ANDERSON:

25

Right.
And on page 3.

It's the last item in your binder,

Members.
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VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

On page 3 there's a table in the

2

middle of the page, and I don't quite understand

3

what the zero gallons classification is and if

4

that's supposed to be part of the zero to 10,000

5

gallons classification.

6

MS. HAJNOSZ:

In our bill frequency analysis that comes

7

out from Honolulu Board of Water Supply, those are

8

people that essentially are signed up as customers

9

but for some reason they're just not using any

10

water.

11

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

12

MS. HAJNOSZ:

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

CHAIR ANDERSON:

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

CHAIR ANDERSON:

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

18

CHAIR ANDERSON:

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

They're not using it.

Yeah.
Oh, okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

That's it.

And why aren't they using it?

Their house's not build yet.

Okay, any other questions from members?
One question, please.

Sure, Mr. Hokama.
As well as maybe a comment.

You

20

know, our two U.S. Senators have mentioned as of

21

last week the ability for the County to look at the

22

Federal Water Reclamation consideration that's going

23

through Congress and the ability of the County,

24

then, to tap to -- what we talked about was to

25

increase capacity of storage and asked our Senators
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1

that since of course the Mayor has spiked our

2

interest by asking us to be open to desalinization

3

and the advantages

4

I'm assuming -- I'm assuming that that is part of

5

your other sources or am I in the wrong direction of

6

your funding?

7

MS. HAJNOSZ:

Not that

I

-

disadvantages of that option.

we have not included any

nOI

8

Federal funding for any of the projects

9

your question.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

That was

- that was deliberately

chosen as one of the parameters

12

Federal funds available to do -MS. HAJNOSZ:

NO

I

if that's

We--

11

13

l

do not look at

I

it was that we weren't aware at the time

14

that the five-year CIP was put together that there

15

would be any Federal funding available for any of

16

the projects on the list with the exception of

17

Piiholo Reservoir

18

might be Federal funding

19

more State funding

20

to get funding for that one project

21

desalinization

22

window right now.

23

outcome of a studYI but right now it's not.

l

which is out in 2010 1 that there

l

l

or actually I think it's

but there might be a possibility
l

but as far as

that's not even in the five-year
It could bel depending on the

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

OkaYI

thank you for your response.

Chair.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you.

2

CHAIR ANDERSON:

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you very much, Chair.

My

4

question is similar to Member Hokama, but utilizing

5

effluent as a source to relieve potable water now

6

being used for I guess farming activities in

7

different areas.

8
9

MR. TENGAN:

Madam Chair, yes, we realize that whatever

reclaimed water that can be used in lieu of using

10

potable water is a benefit to the Department, and so

11

we have worked with -- and we are working with the

12

reclamation

13

project for the Kihei plant.

14

for the preliminary engineering study that needs to

15

be done to look at the feasibility of this project

16

and -- but we haven't had any reports recently from

17

the Wastewater Division, but I believe that project

18

is ongoing.

Wastewater Division in creating a

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

CHAIR ANDERSON:

We've -- we've paid

Thank you.

I'd like to just follow up real quickly

21

on the revenue sources.

In the list of revenue

22

sources you state revenues from the rate, fees,

23

Water System Development Fees, and then you list

24

revenues again.

25

it's hard -- it's taken from my notes.

What are those revenues?
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1

whole list of revenue sources, and I'm sorry, I

2

can't relocate the slide.

3

revenue, Water System Development Fee revenues,

4

bonds, Safe Drinking Water Loans, other State

5

sources, and I want to know what other State sources

6

are and what kind of funds come in from that and

7

what the revenues are other than rate fee revenues.

8

Are there any other revenues besides Water System

9

Development Fees and water rate fees?

10

MS. HAJNOSZ:

But you listed rate fee

We have water rate revenues, which go to the

11

Capital Reserve Funds, we have Water System

12

Development Fee revenues, there are Safe Drinking

13

Water Loans, there are general obligation bonds.

14

There are also, at a minimum level, some private

15

contribution -- private developer contributions.

16

That's at a very minimum level.

17

can be some Federal funds.

18

been some Federal funds, but that's really dried up,

19

but I know that the Department is considering that

20

for, again, this big reservoir project, that perhaps

21

they can get either Federal or State -- additional

22

State grants, but the loans really come out of the

23

Safe Drinking Water Loans at the State level.

24

CHAIR ANDERSON:

25

MS. HAJNOSZ:

There are -- there

In the past there has

So

So that's
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CHAIR ANDERSON:

There are no other revenues other than

those generally speaking?

3

MS. HAJNOSZ:

No.

4

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Okay.

If Members don't have any other

5

questions, I'd like to give Ms. Krash and

6

Mr. Johansen an opportunity to give us their input.

7

They did take the time to come and be here for a

8

resource, and since we haven't heard from them this

9

morning, I'd like to give them a few minutes to go

10
11

ahead and give us whatever input they might like.
MR. JOHANSEN:

Is this on?

Yes, it is.

The one thing

12

that I've been concerned with, we had very limited

13

opportunity to discuss this in the Board of Water

14

Supply, and I've learned a lot by making outrageous

15

statements about what's available, what's possible,

16

but I'm concerned in protecting the existing

17

customers from having to take any part of the load

18

of expansion, new development, and there's a

19

disconnect in my mind no matter how much explanation

20

I get between the amount generated by the Water

21

Source Development Fees and the actual amount, the

22

actual cost of expansion, and that hasn't been

23

looked through the minutes of the Stakeholders

24

Committee to some extent and I haven't seen that

25

discussed, and I think it should be opened up.
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1

2

the community to shoulder increased fees that we

3

make sure that they aren't paying for something that

4

they aren't getting.

5

thought was very effective presented to us in the

6

Board of Water Supply, and I'll repeat it.

7

already stated it to this Committee.

8

block of family members who were already putting

9

their roadway, their curbs, their boulevards, their

We had an analogy that I

I've

If you have a

10

sidewalks, and they paid for them, and their own

11

cul-de-sac, and someone comes along and wants to put

12

in a development at the terminus of that cul-de-sac

13

and they call on these people to help them pay for

14

it.

15

analogy to me is pertinent.

You see on its face that that's unfair and --

16

So my next question is how do you assess

17

whether the Water System and Development Fee is

18

adequate?

19

been stable and unchanging rates for many years are

20

adequate and how do you -- how do you put that into

21

the hopper in order to remove the burden on people

22

who are faced with a rate increase?

23

question I have that's relevant.

24

other questions, but I'm going to write them up.

25

Thank you.

How do you assess whether the -- what has

That's the only

I have a lot of

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

WR 3/16/05

1

105

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Johansen.

We -- if you

2

will write those up and get them to us, I'll make

3

sure the members get a chance to see them.

4

anyone have a question for Mr. Johansen?

5

Ms. Krash.

6

MS. KRASH:

Does
Thank you.

I will defer -- I would defer to our -- I

7

would defer to our Chair, our facilitator, Mike

8

Quinn, for first comments, if he would like to make

9

any.

10

MR. QUINN:

Just briefly.

It's encouraging to me to hear

11

the Council members concerned about essentially many

12

of the issues that we spent a lot of time hashing

13

over also, and hopefully even though we have

14

recommended a ramping up of the CIP, we can all work

15

together in trying to help the department get to

16

that level and I know their hands are tied now in

17

the sense that they're having an awful lot of

18

trouble getting qualified engineers on board, and

19

I'm not sure what can be done in this body or

20

certainly in the Administration, but anything that

21

could help them achieve that goal I think would

22

benefit us all, because this rate increase is geared

23

to improving the system for the current customers,

24

not for new customers.

25

system now should be concerned about upgrading the

And everybody that's on the
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system and maintaining it.
CHAIR ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Quinn.

Ms. Krash, do you have anything to add?

3

4

Thank you.

MS. KRASH:

Simply to echo what Mike Quinn just said, that

5

I feel that this discussion today has reflected

6

exactly what went on during our intense discussions

7

in the Stakeholders Committee meeting and that we

8

have come to the conclusion, as Mike just stated,

9

that this increase is needed to complete tasks that

10

have been pending for years, things that need to be

11

done.

12

strong feeling of the group that we needed that, we

13

needed to set the bar higher, and we needed to all

14

work together, Council, Administration, Department,

15

all of us to try and figure out ways to help

16

everyone work towards this.

17

The system needs are great and it's a very

And like you, we -- we ranged far and wide in

18

our discussions, and there's a list of the issues

19

for further consideration, Water Use Development

20

Plan, expedited completion of that.

21

the things we mentioned and we went far afield in

22

our discussions, but -- and the problem is all of

23

these things are knotted together, and we have to

24

keep our focus here on what's needed now out in the

25

field, which is the improvements of our transmission

That was one of
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and distribution lines, our plants, our storage and

2

source.

3

CHAIR ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Mr. Johansen, I just have a

4

quick question for you.

5

of Water Supply did not have much time to review

6

this study.

7

MR. JOHANSEN:

You mention that the Board

Can you elaborate on that?

Well, first of all, it was proposed I think

8

early last fall in September that we have a

9

subcommittee to deal with the budget overall, and

10

that died.

11

We were given the rate study recommendations on

12

December 13th and we held our meeting on December

13

14th and there was no time at that point to take any

14

action, and we did have a Water Rate Study session,

15

budget session in early January, but we had

16

difficulty in getting a quorum for that and we spent

17

a lot of time waiting until that quorum could come

18

up, and as time was limited, and so we didn't really

19

get a chance to adequately discuss this.

20

don't think most of the members of the Board of

21

Water Supply really understand it, including me.

22

I think it would have been very helpful.

And I

And so I think that's something that should

23

be corrected at another time.

It limits our

24

effectiveness, and we certainly, without any rules

25

after two and a half years, since the Charter
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1

amendment went into effect, felt as if we're kind of

2

stranded, as if we're kind of superfluous.

3

all kinds of (inaudible) and a lot of dedicated

4

people sitting around not knowing for sure whether

5

they're listened to or whether they're getting all

6

the information they need and whether they're really

7

performing a function.

8

but that's one of our problems.

9

CHAIR ANDERSON:

We have

So that's the type of care,

Thank you, Mr. Johansen.

And I'd just

10

like members to know that Mr. Johansen is a retired

11

attorney, so we shouldn't feel bad if we're having a

12

hard time understanding this, if he is.
Thank you, members of the panel for coming

13
14

and giving us your input.

We do appreciate it.

And, Ms. Hajnosz, are you going to be coming

15
16

back to the Council for the budget session?

17

Thursday you will be here.

18

much.

Okay, thank you very

Thank you, Staff, for coming, and, Members.

19
20

Next

I'm going to defer this item with no objection.

21

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

No objections.

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (PRESENT:
JOHNSON, PONTANILLA, AND TAVARES)

ANDERSON,

23
24
25

ACTION:

CHAIR ANDERSON:

DEFER.

Okay, thank you all for being here.
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meeting is adjourned.
ADJOURN:

(Gavel) .

12: 00 p.m.
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C E R T I F I CAT E

1

2

STATE OF HAWAI I

3
4

SS.
CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUl

5

6

I,

Jessica R. Perry, Certified Shorthand Reporter

7

for the State of Hawaii, hereby certify that the

8

proceedings were taken down by me in machine shorthand and

9

was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under my

10

supervisioni that the foregoing represents to the best of

11

my ability, a true and correct transcript of the

12

proceedings had in the foregoing matter.

13

I further certify that I am not attorney for any of

14

the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15

cause.

16
17

DATED this 12th day of April, 2005, in Honolulu,
Hawaii.
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